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B.R.S. Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Kumari Marg, House No. 43
P.O. Box 8137, Naxal,

hmandu, Nepal
= B.R.S. Neupane

Tel : 977-1- 4511314

Fax - O77-1- 4520572 & Co.

E-mail : chartered@brs.com.np
Web : www.brs.com.np

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. which
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) and the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory notes.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanation given to us the
aforesaid financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of
company, as at Ashad 31, 2078 and its financial performance, changes in equity, cash flow for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory notes in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) with allowed carve-outs and
comply with Companies Act 2063 and Bank and Financial Institution Act 2073,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together
with ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the company under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2063 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31 Ashad 2078.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

A rnembe: of

Nexia

International
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| Auditor Response

| Key Audit Matters

Impact of COVID — 19 on the Microfinance and Compliance with circular issued by NRB

Considering the potential impact of second wave

of COVID -19  governmenl  announce
Nationwide lockdown from mid of Baishak
2078,

NRB and other government authority issued
various circulars/direction and order to be adhere
by the organization. COVID-19 has created an
unprecedented level of uncertainty about the
economy, future carnings, continuity of the
business, we have considered this as our key
audit matter.

Our audit approach regarding COVID-19
outbreak and the mitigation approach by the
company is based on the various circular issued by
NRB on various date till the date of our review.

Directive issued by NRB regarding Provision of
rcbate and discount in terms of Interest for
customer making regular payment of installment
during lockdown period. In relation to this
direction board meeting held on 2078.2.21 decide
to grant rebate of 10% on interest paid for the
months of Jestha and Ashad 2078 for pass loan.
This rebate amounted to NRs. 59,752,201,

Our Result: We did not find any instances of non-
compliance during the course of our audit in
relation to direction provided by the NRB.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NAS 39 and carve-out for the respective
standard, mmpairment for loans and advances
has been measured as the higher amount
derived as per norms prescribed by NRB for
loan loss provision and amount derived as per
para 63 1.¢. Expected Loss Method.

Our  audit approaches included clear
understanding of the practice of calculation of
impairment of Loans and Advances.

We also examine Circular issued by NRB as on
2078.04,11 requiring organization to make
additional loan loss provision (Impairment) of
0.3% on Pass loan. Accordingly, we found
additional  provision/impairment  of NRs.
73,793,382 made on pass loan.

Our Result: We agreed with the calculation of the
impairment of Loans and Advances made by the
management.

‘echnology System & Control Impacting Financial Reporting

" The Information Technology of the company is
complex and involves a large number of
independent and inter-dependent IT Systems
used in the operations of the company for
processing and recording a large volume of
transactions. As a resull. there 1s a hugh degree of
reliance and dependency on such IT systems for
the financial reporting process of the company.

Appropriate 1T General Controls and application
controls are required to ensure that such IT
systems are able to process the data, as required,
completely. accurately and consistently for
| financial reporting,

Our audit approach regarding Information

Technology of the company is based upon the

Information Technology Guidelines 2012 issued

by NRB and it also included:

o Verification of the interest income and expense
booking regarding loan and deposits on test
check basis with the CBS of the company.

e Reliance on the IT audit conducted by the
company.

o Verification of the provisioning of the loan and
advances based on ageing on test check basis.
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We have considered this as key audit matter as | Our Result: We considered the information
any control lapses, validation failures, incorrect | technology systems and their relevant controls to
mput data and wrong extraction of data may | be adequate.

result in wrong reporting of data to management,
stakeholders and regulators.

Assessment of Provisions in respect of certain litigations including Income Tax and claims filed
| by various parties not acknowledged as debt
There is a high level of judgment required in | Our audit procedures included:

estimating level of provisioning. The company’s | ¢ Understanding of current status of litigations/
assessment is supported by facts of matter, their |  tax assessments

own judgment, past experience, and advices | e Evaluating the merit of the subject matter under
from legal and independent consultants wherever | consideration  with  reference to  grounds
considered nceessary. Accordingly. unexpected | presented therein and available legal/ tax advice
adverse outcomes may significantly impact the | « Review and analysis of cvaluation of the
company’s profit and the Statement of Financial | - contentions  of the  company through
Position. discussions, collections of details of the subject
We determined the above area as Key Audit |  matter under consideration, the likely outcome
Matter in view of associated uncertainty relating | and potential outflows on these issues.

to the outcome of these matters which requires
application of judgment in interpretation of law, | Qur Result: We agreed with the assessment of
provisions in respect of litigations and provisions
thercon provided by the company.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with NFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
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charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists.

As part of'an audit in accordance with NSAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of going concern basis of
accounting,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements
of NRB Directives, Companies Act 2063, BAFIA 2073 and other regulatory requirements.

e  We have obtained all the information and the explanation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief, where necessary for the purpose of our audit.

e Based on our audit, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
company.

¢ Returns received from the branch offices of the company were adequate for the purposes
of our audit though the statements are independently not audited.

e The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets of
the company are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

e In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and
from our examination of the books of accounts of the company we have not come across
any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the company have acted
contrary (o the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss
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or damage (o the company and violated Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank or acted
ina manner, as would jeopardize the interest and security of the company, its shareholders
and its depositors.

® The business of the company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdiction and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

% - {3\
L )

\Z\ /
et
‘A Gyanendra B. Bhari \Q{-'ﬂ'_ -'"_-'3;-_'/

Partner

UDIN: 211 119CA00070vodKR
Date: 03.08.2078
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position

Bittiya Sanstha Limited

As on 31% Ashadh, 2078 Amount in NPR
Particulars Note FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 8,021,622,541.65 7,114,774,257.41 3,468,110,840.23
Statutory Balances & due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 594,517,670.00 550,715,020.00 503,510,020.00
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - -
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 24,888,658,466.29 18,922,350,018.03 19,579,543,898.38
Investment Securities 4.8 359,403,186.81 298,092,829.67 139,696,422.00
Current Tax Assets 4.9 - - -
Investment Property 4.10 - - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 260,870,621.24 250,836,681.59 242.447,619.31
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.12 3,698,644.58 3,491,690.44 2,990,529.90
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 21,176,239.16 8,454,156.73 -
Other Assets 4.14 136,807,893.30 110,538,851.51 119,389,928.23
Total Assets 34,286,755,263.03 27,259,253,505.38 24,055,689,258.05
Particulars Note FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - 1,198,967.00 2,181,935.00
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.17 - - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 22,439,376,264.79 18,665,963,630.71 15,387,326,226.34
Borrowings 4.19 6,217,521,409.64 4,073,346,786.59 4,479,520,993.88
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 44,009,196.85 20,923,050.62 25,671,277.93
Provisions 4.20 - 17,064,376.66 17,064,376.66
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 - - 1,214,670.99
Other Liabilities 4.21 514,736,948.26 378,046,788.66 311,868,685.72
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total Liabilities 29,215,643,819.54 23,156,543,600.24 20,224,848,166.52
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 1,830,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00 1,180,000,000.00
Share Premium 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00
Retained Earnings 1,223,997,855.81 891,789,432.57 954,528,133.09
Reserves 4.25 1,976,145,753.68 1,669,952,638.57 1,655,345,124.44
Total Equity 5,071,111,443.49 4,102,709,905.14 3,830,841,091.53
Total Liabilities and Equity 34,286,755,263.03 27,259,253,505.38 24,055,689,258.05
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4.26 - - -
Net Assets Value per share 277.11 273.51 324.65
As per our report of even date
Ganesh Ghimire Cholaraj Sharma Joshi Prakash Raj Bista Ram Sogarath Sah Gyanendra B. Bhari, FCA
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Manoj Kumar Yadav Karna Bahadur Ghale Rita Pant Anup Maskay Rishi Raj Joshi
Director Director Director Director Chairman

Date: November 17, 2021
Place: Mid Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Ashadh, 2078 Amount in NPR
Particulars Note FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Interest Income 4.27 4,227,806,576.03 3,832,766,170.57
Interest Expense 4.28 1,998,019,680.99 2,068,458,345.71
Net Interest Income 2,229,786,895.04 1,764,307,824.86
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 531,027,970.33 352,898,920.73
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 76,383.94 280,604.99
Net Fee and Commission Income 530,951,586.39 352,618,315.74
Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 2,760,738,481.43 2,116,926,140.60
Net Trading Income 431 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 702,438.23 641,250.00
Total Operating Income 2,761,440,919.66 2,117,567,390.60
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 4.33 (60,290,207.15) 283,181,673.10
Net Operating Income 2,821,731,126.81 1,834,385,717.50
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 828,447,250.96 730,125,045.65
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 122,407,371.72 112,505,048.42
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.36 31,502,890.37 32,937,543.18
Operating Profit 1,839,373,613.77 958,818,080.25
Non Operating Income 437 64,158,802.22 30,100,016.68
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - 211,921.00
Profit Before Income Tax 1,903,532,415.99 988,706,175.93
Income Tax Expense 4.39
Current Tax 604,792,487.31 327,275,978.74
Deferred Tax (15,115,846.93) (8,945,880.52)
Profit for the Year 1,313,855,775.60 670,376,077.71
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Financial Institution 1,313,855,775.60 670,376,077.71
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the Year 1,313,855,775.60 670,376,077.71
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 71.80 44.69
Diluted Earnings per Share 71.80 44.69

Ganesh Ghimire

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Yadav Karna Bahadur Ghale
Director Director

Date: November 17, 2021
Place: Mid Baneshwor, Kathmandu

3

Cholaraj Sharma Joshi

Prakash Raj Bista
Director

Rita Pant
Director

As per our report of even date

Ram Sogarath Sah
Director

Anup Maskay
Director

Gyanendra B. Bhari, FCA
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rishi Raj Joshi

Chairman
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 Ashadh, 2078 Amount in NPR
Particulars Note FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Profit for the year 1,313,855,775.60 | 670,376,077.71
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value - -
Gains/(losses) on revaluation - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 7,979,215.00 | (2,409,824.00)
Income tax relating to above items (2,393,764.50) 722,947.20
ll:se;t other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or 5,585,450.50 | (1,686,876.80)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign i i
operation)
Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit ) )
or loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax 5,585,450.50 | (1,686,876.80)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,319,441,226.10 | 668,689,200.91
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Financial Institution 1,319,441,226.10 | 668,689,200.91
Non-controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 1,319,441,226.10 | 668,689,200.91
As per our report of even date
Ganesh Ghimire Cholaraj Sharma Joshi ~ Prakash Raj Bista ~ Ram Sogarath Sah  Gyanendra B. Bhari, FCA
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Manoj Kumar Yaday ~ Karna Bahadur Ghale RitaPant Anup Maskay Rishi Raj Joshi
Director Director Director Director Chairman

Date: November 17, 2021
Place: Mid Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 Ashadh, 2078 Amount in NPR
Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 4,064,580,878.03 3,832,766,170.57

Fee and Other Income Received
Dividend Received

Receipts from Other Operating Activities
Interest Paid

531,027,970.33

64,158,802.22
(1,998,019,680.99)

352,898,920.73

30,100,016.68
(2,068,458,345.71)

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions
Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions
Loans and Advances to Customers

Other Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financials Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from Customers

Borrowings

Other Liabilities

Commissions and Fees Paid (76,383.94) (280,604.99)
Cash Payment to Employees (820,767,665.76) (729,027,303.93)
Other Expenses Paid (122,226,016.61) (112,736,691.45)
Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 1,718,677,903.28 1,305,262,161.90

(43,802,650.00)

(5,750,785,433.72)
(23,875,277.29)

(1,198,967.00)
3,773,412,634.08
2,144,174,623.05

142,843,879.48

(47,205,000.00)

364,674,386.14
9,342,800.50

(982,968.00)
3,278,637,404.37
(406,174,207.29)

68,475,006.06

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid
Income Tax Paid

1,959,446,711.88
(604,792,487.31)

4,572,029,583.69
(327,275,978.74)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

1,354,654,224.57

4,244,753,604.95

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities

Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities

Purchase of Property and Equipment

Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets

Purchase of Investment Properties

Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties

Interest Received

Dividend Received

(61,310,357.14)
(40,964,427.57)
518,046.00
(1,236,220.00)

641,255.63

(158,396,407.67)
(41,273,756.31)
734,190.31
(1,288,199.54)

641,250.00

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

(102,351,703.08)

(199,582,923.21)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities

Repayments of Debt Securities

Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities
Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities

Receipt from Issue of Shares

Dividends Paid (105,000,000.00) (203,157,894.74)
Interest Paid

Other Receipts/Payments (240,454,237.24) (195,349,369.83)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (345,454,237.24) (398,507,264.57)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

906,848,284.25

3,646,663,417.18

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2077

Effect of Exchange Rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held

7,114,774,257.41

3,468,110,840.23

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ashadh 31, 2078

8,021,622,541.65

7,114,774,257.41

Ganesh Ghimire

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
Manoj Kumar Yadav Karna Bahadur Ghale
Director Director

Date: November 17, 2021
Place: Mid Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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Cholaraj Sharma Joshi

Prakash Raj Bista
Director

Rita Pant
Director

As per our report of even date

Ram Sogarath Sah Gyanendra B. Bhari, FCA
Director BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Anup Maskay Rishi Raj Joshi
Director Chairman
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Ashadh, 2078 (As per NRB Regulation)
Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 1,313,855,775.60 670,376,077.71

Appropriations:
a. General reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund
e. Employees' training fund
f. Client Protection Fund
g. Other

Other Reserves

354,271,155.12

13,138,557.76

58,888,557.76

132,427,968.54

40,371,398.43

40,371,398.43

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

887,557,504.97

457,205,312.31

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)

(102,832,189.74)

(21,176,239.16)

5,585,450.50

Distributable profit or (loss)

769,134,526.57

457,205,312.31

Ganesh Ghimire

Cholaraj Sharma Joshi

Prakash Raj Bista

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
Manoj Kumar Yadav Karna Bahadur Ghale Rita Pant
Director Director Director

Date: November 17, 2021
Place: New Baneshwor, Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Ram Sogarth Sah
Director

Anup Maskay
Director

Gyanendra B. Bhari, FCA
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rishi Raj Joshi

Chairman
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sastha Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31* Ashadh 2078
1. Reporting Entity

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (‘the Microfinance') is domiciled and incorporated in Nepal under then
Development Bank Act, 2052 on 28" Bhadra, 2058 from Nepal Rastra Bank. The microfinance is operating as a D
Class licensed financial institution as per Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2063. The Microfinance is a limited
liability company having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange with trading code “CBBL” after issuing its shares
to the general public on Fiscal Year 2061/62. The microfinance has been promoted by Neighborhood Society Service
Center (NSSC), Himalayan Bank Limited, Bank of Kathmandu Limited, Nabil Bank Limited and several reputed
persons. Initially the microfinance was operating from its Registered Office at Hetauda, which was later transferred to
Kathmandu Metropolitan city-31, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu.

Having approval to operate at National Level, by the end of Ashadh 2077 the microfinance was operating in 67 Districts
with its 137 branches. During this fiscal year the microfinance has established 49 new branches (Kalika, Kholagaun,
Dullu, Chipur, Mastamandu, Mangalsen, Sahajpur, Nigali, Simli, Kalimati, Devsthal, Mohanyal, Narayanpur,
Sigas, Panchapuri, Kahchanpur, Kamirechaur, Dodharachandani, Shuklaphanta, Fulbari, Gauradaha, Kanchanrup,
Kanepokhari, Suryodaya, Sahidbhumi, Mahalaxmi, Khandbari, Madee, Yongworak, Kachankawal, Krishnapur,
Arjundhara, Maiwakhola, Mechinagar, Jogmai, Annapurna, Dingla, Pyauli, Fidim, Phalelung, Aunsidanda, Mude,
Gadhawa, Balkot, Hansipur, Suryapura, Duduwa, Loharpani, and Kanchanrup) and serving through 186 total branches
by the end of this fiscal year. The microfinance is also collecting public deposits from 61 branches after getting approval
for the same from Nepal Rastra Bank on 2067.10.11. With the aim of improving access to financial services of the poor
and marginalized women members, promoting a culture of saving, encouraging income generation, supporting micro-
enterprises development and providing social security services to its member the microfinance is serving 382,149
Households through its 186 branches till the end of this fiscal year.

Being D Class licensed institution, major activities of the microfinance include deprived sector lending under the group
guarantee without collateral in order to enhance economic and social factors of the members. Also, the microfinance
provides additional microenterprise loan to its members within the limit as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time
to time. The major sources of fund are member savings, public deposits along with loan from other BFIs and Equity
holders’ fund.

The Microfinance has Chhimek Bajar Byawastha Company Ltd. and Chhimek Academy Pvt. Ltd. as its associate
companies. Chhimek Bajar Byawastha Company Ltd. is engaged in easy access to basic utilities for public. Chhimek
Academy Limited is engaged in the business of Providing quality education at minimal fees to under privileged
students.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the standalone financial statements of the Microfinance,
have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) issued by Accounting
Standard Board (ASB) of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. The financial statements are based on the
formats mandated by the Directive No. 4 of The Unified Directives, 2077 as made applicable by the Nepal Rastra
Bank.

These financial statements for the year ended 3 1% Ashadh, 2078 are the first financial statements of the microfinance
prepared in accordance with NFRS. Reconciliations and description of the effect of the transition to NFRS from
previous GAAP is given in Note 5.11 of this financial statement.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s
classification / disclosures.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The microfinance follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1% Shrawan and ending
on last day of Ashadh.
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These financial statements consist three Statement of Financial Position as of 31t Ashadh 2078, 31t Ashadh
2077 and 31% Ashadh 2076 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoption of NFRS. The microfinance has also
presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, two statements of
Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended as of 31** Ashadh 2078 and 31** Ashadh
2077 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2074 (First Amendment).

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 1% Mangsir 2078 and
recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 20" Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Microfinance operates. The financial information presented has been rounded off to
nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in
the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods except where deviations have been explicitly
mandated by the applicable accounting standards presented in the financial statements, including the preparation
of the opening NFRS compliant Statement of Financial Position as at 15 Shrawan, 2076 being the date of transition
to NFRS.

2.6 New Standards Issued but not yet effective

IFRS-9, Financial Instrument which replace the existing standard relating to Financial Instrument which provide
for the expected credit loss model for the impairment of the financial assets. This statement is neither issued
nor made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). Thus, the financial statement
is recognized, measured, presented and disclosed using NAS-32 Financial Instrument- Presentation, NAS-39
Financial Instrument-Recognition and Measurements and NFRS-7 Financial Instrument- Disclosure.

2.7 New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

e IFRS-9 has been internationally made applicable by International Accounting Standard Board from 1st
January 2018 but the same has not been adopted by the ICAN. Thus, this standard was not considered in the
financial statement.

e JASB has issued a new accounting standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers for the
recognition of the revenue which has not been taken into consideration for the preparation of these financial
statement as the same has not been adopted by ICAN.

e  Other amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB are not adopted as those are not
notified by ICAN.
e [FRS 9 has been internationally made applicable by International Accounting Standard Board from 1st January

2018 but the same has not been adopted by the ICAN. Thus, this standard was not considered in the financial
statement.

e [ASB has issued a new accounting standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers for the recognition
of the revenue which has not been taken into consideration for the preparation of these financial statement as the
same has not been adopted by ICAN.

e  Other’s amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB are not adopted as those are not
notified by ICAN.
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2.8 Discounting

The non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by the
NFRS.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Microfinance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Basis of Measurement
Retirement Benefit Present value of defined benefit
Obligation Obligation less the fair value of the plan assets

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are measured
at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if they are related to
the issue of debt or equity securities.

The microfinance doesn’t have any other entity for consolidation of financial statements. Investment in shares
made by the microfinance are financial investments.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cashflow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks
and financial institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturity
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to and insignificant risk of changes in their fair
values and are used by the microfinance in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFIs and other short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents are presented under Note 4.1.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.4.1. Recognition

The Microfinance recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets
and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

3.4.2. Classification and Measurement

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

3.4.2.1. Financial assets
Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization
of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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b. Measured at fair value through OCI:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI).

Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held for trading for which the
Microfinance makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument through OCI
are measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income.

c. Measured at fair value through profit or loss:

The Microfinance classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
3.4.2.2. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

3.4.3.De-recognition

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.4.4.Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Microfinance follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of
quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive
markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

3.4.5.Impairment

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether
an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is
extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment
loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the provisions made.
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The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based
on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In
estimating these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number of factors including a borrower’s
financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on
its merits to estimate the recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is established for:

e groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that
are not considered individually significant; and

e groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss
being greater than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment Microfinance has categorized assets into following
broad products as follows:

e CGISP Loan

*  Collateral Loan

* Discipline Loan

*  Normal Loan

*  Entrepreneurship development loan
Carveout adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Microfinance has opted to apply carveout on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and
collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under
NRB directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and
receivables.

Comparison of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB:

Particulars F/Y 2077-78 F/Y 2076-77 Restated
LLP as per NRB Directives 457,761,916 517,870,768 234,708,817
Impairment as per NFRS 87,461,409 80,635,298 14,543,454

Impact of Covid on LLP

For the fiscal year, NRB through circular dated 2078.04.11 has mandated the microfinances to record additional
provision of 0.30% on pass loan making it to a total of 1.30%. In compliance with this provision, the microfinance has
recorded NPR. 73,793,381.57 as additional provision on pass loan as on Ashadh end 2078.

3.5 Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on
trade date, when the Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally
derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss.
Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net trading income’. However, the
Microfinance does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2078.

3.6 Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date.
However, the Microfinance does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2078.
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3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Microfinance depreciates property, plant and equipment following Written Down Value
method applying the Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058. The rates used for depreciation of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Type of Asset Depreciation Rate
Buildings 5%
Computer & Accessories 25%
Vehicles - Two-wheeler 20%
- Four-wheeler 20%
Furniture & Fixtures 25%
Equipment & Others - Equipment 25%
Other Assets 25%

Rate set, dividing the cost of the property by adjusting in the

Intangible Assets nearest half year of the fiscal year

The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has not measured any
Property Plant and Equipment at revaluation model and at fair value. The items of Property, Plant and Equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets having acquisition
cost less than NPR. 1,000 have been written down as an expense for the period in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

3.8 Goodwill/Intangible Assets

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual
or other legal rights, and their fair value can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost less impairment / amortization over their estimated useful life.

3.9 Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment
and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by the Microfinance
as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date. However, the Microfinance does not have Investment
Property as on Ashadh end.

3.10 Income Tax

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
3.10.1. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates
to items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year,
using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years.
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Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act, 2058

Particulars
Profit as per NFRS (Before Staff Bonus Provision)

Less: Staff Bonus Provision
Profit as per NFRS (After Staff Bonus Provision)
Add:
Inadmissible Expenses as per Income tax Act, 2058
1 Depreciation as per Accounting System
2 Staft Gratuity Provision
3 Staff Leave Provision
4 Provision on Other Assets
5 Unpaid Bonus Payable

Repair and Maintenance Expenses as per Accounting

6 System

7 Proportionate increase in Bonus due to Dividend

Less:

Admissible Expenses as Per Income Tax Act, 2058
1 Depreciation as per Section 19

Write back of provision on other assets

Payment of staff Gratuity

Leave encashment

Dividend Income

Payment from payable bonus of last years

~N N R W

Repair and maintenance expenses as per section 16

Total Taxable Income

Income Tax Liability

Reconciliation of Profit Under GAAP and NFRS

Particular

Profit under GAAP
Adjustment:

Interest Accrual-interest Income
Bonus Adjustment this year on NFRS profit
Lease SLM

Actuarial-Gratuity

Investment Securities

Reversal of Share issue Expenses
Investment Properties
Actuarial-Leave

Staff Expense-Staff loan

Interest Income-Staff loan

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

31,502,890.37
44,203,816.30
17,932,655.10
18,644.89
898,208.86

2,998,259.09

58,295.97

31,477,730.09
200,000.00
8,343,160.65
4,000,730.10
641,255.63
304,633.10
2,631,227.60

Advance Tax deposited

Income Tax Receivable

FY 2077/78
1,209,149,181.08

163,225,698.00
(48,967,709.40)

(5,278,852.00)

1,926,103.33
5,410,802.31
(7,811,535.50)
7,811,535.50

Amounts (NPR.)

2,115,036,017.76
211,503,601.78
1,903,532,415.98

97,612,770.58

47,598,737.18
1,953,546,449.39
586,063,934.82
599,721,004.19
13,657,069.37

FY 2076/77
662,139,842.72

2,285,679.00

2,454,374.00
5,974,122.42
(9,357,543.14)
9,357,543.14
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Particular FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Current Tax (Bonus) 5,905,674.14

Deferred Tax (39,585.09) (2,477,940.43)
Sub-total 104,706,594.53 8,236,234.99
Profit Under NFRS 1,313,855,775.60 670,376,077.71

Tax Settlement Status:

The microfinance has filed tax returns with the Large Tax Payers office for the fiscal year up to 2076-77 under self-
assessment procedure. Large Tax Payer’s Office has also completed amended assessment of FY 2073.74 and has shown
an additional tax liability of NPR. 18,728,552.49 with fees. The microfinance has also appealed for administrative
review to Inland Revenue Department after deposit of total assessed amount of FY 2073/74 NPR. 18,728,552.49 &
FY 2072/73 NPR. 20,923,050.62 which is pending till date. Further, the microfinance has filed for appeal to Appellate
court for the disputed amount of NPR. 3,469,258.44 out of total amended tax assessment of NPR. 6,302,242.60 for the
Fiscal year 2068/69 which is pending till date.

3.10.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

During this Fiscal Year Net Deferred Tax Asset is NPR. 21,176,239.16 calculation of which is shown in notes no. 4.13.

3.11 Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

3.11.1. Deposits:

Deposits by members and public depositors are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those financial liabilities
not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring the
deposits.

3.11.2 Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. However, the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on Ashadh end 2078.

3.11.3 Subordinate Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued
and other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc.
During the reporting period the Microfinance did not have any such liabilities.

3.12 Provisions, other Liabilities Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation
at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate and
are reversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources.

Other Liabilities includes provisioning of Capital Merchant Banking and Finance Limited NPR. 1,803,086.17,
Employee embezzlement NPR. 20,831,989.50, TDS Payable NPR. 8,167,300.07, Retention and Deposits NPR.
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14,883,377.17 and remaining other liabilities NPR. 485,906,688.

The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are
disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The Microfinance
does not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2078.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Microfinance and
the consideration can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria shall also be met for
revenue recognition:

3.13.1 Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available-
for-sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of effective interest rate
includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part of the effective interest only if considered
necessary. Such a charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized
closely approximates the income that would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized
directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

e Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest
rate method, except for impaired loans and advances. These financial assets include investment in
government securities, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter-bank
lending, etc.

*  Asper carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Microfinance has not included the fees paid or received in loans
and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and
have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

e  Asper carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Microfinance has applied the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

e Interest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest rate.

*  Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the
period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

* Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations and
are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading
income.

* Interest income accrued but not received from Performing Loan and Advance till date has been
recognized in the current year interest income.

Impact of Covid-19 second wave on Revenue

As per the decision of meeting of Board of Directors dated 2078.02.21, it was decided to provide 10% interest rebate
to the good borrowers as incentive on their interest payment for the month of Jestha and Ashadh 2078. In compliance
with this decision of Board, for Jestha 2078 rebate of NPR. 29,013,670.00 was provided to 223,045 Borrowers and
for Ashadh 2078 rebate of NPR. 30,738,531.00 was provided to 249,828 Borrowers. The amount has been adjusted to
Interest Income for the fiscal year.
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3.13.2 Fee and Commission Income.
Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
3.13.3 Dividend Income.

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to receive the dividend
is established.

3.13.4. Net Trading Income.

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend
from financial assets ‘Held for Trading’. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the amount
net of trading expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.

3.13.5 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss.

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses)
raised from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.

3.13.6. Grant Income

Grant income has been recognized in Income statement on a systematic basis over the period in which the microfinance
has recognized the expense for the related cost for which the grants are intended to compensate. In the case of grants
related to assets, Deferred Grant Income has been recognized. The amount equal to the depreciation on the Grant
Assets is charged to grant income for the period.

Sakshyam Project has provided grant and assisted the microfinance through Digital Mahila Program in order to develop
alternate delivery channel to provide access to finance in remote areas where microfinance was unable to expand its
service earlier. However, the project was completed on 2078.02.18, hence all the deferred grant income amounting to
NPR. 23,023,445.15 has been transferred to grant income to the statement of Income under Other Operating Income
during the reporting period.

3.13.7 Recognition of Cash Risk Fund to Income

As per Cash and Fixed Assets Risk Fund Directive, 2068 of the Microfinance, it had practice of transferring
p-a. 0.20% of total outstanding loan portfolio every month by each branch to the Cash Risk Fund. However,
as the microfinance has obtained insurance coverage for the same from insurance company. There seems no
requirement of creation of additional fund for this an amount of NPR. 17,064,376.66 provisioned under the fund
has been transferred to Statement of Income under Other Operating Income in the reporting period.

3.14 Interest Expenses

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in statement of profit or loss using
effective interest rate method. The Microfinance uses ASB carve- outs as mentioned above and treat coupon rate
as effective interest rate.

3.15 Employee Benefits

3.15.1 Short term employee benefits

The Microfinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security
expenses, bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service
is provided.

3.15.2. Post-Employment employee benefits
3.15.2.1 Defined Contribution Plans

Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity and
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are categorized under defined contribution plans.
The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees.
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Employee Provident Fund

Employee provident fund is the defined contribution plan opt by the microfinance. Complying with The Labor
Act, 2074, the microfinance contributes 10% of the Basic salary and Grade Amount of all the employees to the
Approved Retirement Fund, established by the microfinance. The Microfinance has no further obligations under
these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

Gratuity

Further New Labor Act, 2074 came in force after 19" of Bhadra 2074 which requires to provide minimum of 8.33%
of Basic Salary plus Grade as gratuity every month which is in nature of Define contribution plan. The microfinance is
providing gratuity benefits under this provision to all the employees recruited after the enforcement of new labor act.

Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Note 4.21.
3.15.2.2. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Microfinance’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation and that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefit is expected to be paid. The defined benefit obligation is recognized on the basis of the report
of qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and
losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in OCI and all expenses related to defined benefits plans
in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the group, the recognized assets are limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan assets
(excluding interest income) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized immediately
in OCI. The Microfinance determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments. Net interest expenses and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personal expenses in Statement of profit and
Loss.

Gratuity:

As in case of the staffs recruited earlier to the enforcement of new labor act, gratuity benefits have been provisioned as
per the Employees byelaw of the microfinance as below:

a. To the employee serving more than 3 years to 7 years, half month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
b. To the employee serving more than 7 years to 11 years, one month’s last drawn salary for each year of service

c¢. To the employee serving more than 11 years to 16 years, one and half month’s last drawn salary for each year
of service

d. To the employee serving more than 16 years, Two month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
Gratuity provision is made every year by the microfinance under this plan and this is in nature of defined benefit plan.
Leave Benefits:

The microfinance provides accumulated leave benefits under its Employees Byelaw. The Home leave is accumulated
up to 60 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of sick leave. Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long
term benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations are estimated on the basis of last drawn salary of the employee.
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3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

3.16.1 Financial Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. As a lessor under finance leases, the
Microfinance presents the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned charges, in ‘Loans and
advances to banks’ or ‘Loans and advances to customers. As a lessee under finance leases, the Microfinance
presents the leased assets in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in ‘Other liabilities. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair
value of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. However, Microfinance does not
have any financial lease transaction as on Ashadh end 2078.

3.16.2. Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease has been recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease
term. Majority of the lease agreement entered into by the microfinance are within the clause of normal increment
which the management assumes are in line with the expected inflationary cost. The microfinance operated its
branches in number of lease facilities under operating lease agreement. The payments to the lesser are structured
to increase in line with the general inflation rate to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost increment.

3.17 Share Capital and Reserves

3.17.1. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other
financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

The shares issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through
equity and disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

3.17.2. Reserves
The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.
a) Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 and 50% of additional amount of
Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 20% as provisioned in Circular
GHA/1/078/79 of NRB Dated 2078/04/11 is set aside to the general reserve.

Movement in Statutory General reserve during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Opening Balance as on 1** Shrawan 2077 784,449,914.25
Amount Transferred during this period
1) 20% of Net profit 262,771,155.12
2) 50% of dividend in excess of 20% 91,500,000.00
Closing Balance as on Ashadh End 2078 1,138,721,069.37

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the foreign currency
computed as per regulatory books is set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

c¢) Assets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-financial
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[CHHIMEK]
assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured following
revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be
fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax
consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model.

d) Capital reserve
This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the amounts
arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds
in this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus
shares upon obtaining prior approval from the central bank.
e) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of corporate social
responsibility.
Movement in CSR Fund during this fiscal year:
Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Unspent balance till the End of 2076 Ashadh 13,192,323.23
Provision of F/y 2076/77 40,371,398.43
Opening Balance of 1* Shrawan 2077 53,563,721.66
Add: provision of this F/Y (1% of net profit as per NFRS) 13,138,557.76
Total (A) 66,702,279.42
Less: Expense for the F/Y
a. Transfer to Covid Relief Fund 13,192,323.23
b. Expenses for Social Project Works 11,766,059.08
€. Direct Donation Expenses 16,189,480.83
Total (B) 41,147,863.14
Closing Balance as on Ashadh End 2078 (A-B) 25,554,416.28
f) Employee Training Fund
The fund is created for the purpose of employee training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the
microfinance needs to spend at least 3% of last fiscal year’s total personnel expenses for the development and
trainings of the employees. Further if the microfinance couldn’t spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amount
shall be transferred to the Employee Training Fund and shall be used for employee trainings in subsequent years.
During this fiscal year, NRB through the circular dated 2078.04.11has stated that the provision shall not
be compulsory for this fiscal year, as the second variant of Covid-19 has affected the physical training
campaigns for the microfinances. And hence no amount is transferred to the fund this year.
g) Investment Adjustment Fund
It is a reserve created on investment in equity instrument if the equity doesn’t get listed in Security Market
within 2 years as per the directives issued by NRB. The microfinance has set aside NPR. 19,400,000 to its
Investment Adjustment Fund complying with the NRB’s Directives 8(5) to microfinance, which is cent
percent of the investment in unlisted equities.
h) Regulatory Reserve
The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for
distribution of dividend shall be presented under this reserve. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance
includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to accrued interest receivable as on
Ashadh end 2078 not recovered. Reserve on deferred tax assets, non-banking assets, reduction in fair value
of investment in equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc.
i) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
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The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive or negative
to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not
be regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes

actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

j) Client protection fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess of 20% is

also allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives.

Movement in Client Protection Fund this year:

Particulars

Opening Balance of 1* Shrawan 2077
Addition to the Fund this F/'Y

a. Interest Income to the Fund

b. 1% of Net profit as per NFRS of the F/y

c. 25% of dividend in excess of 20%

Total (A)
Less: Expenses from Fund this Year
Assistance on the death of Borrower and Guardian of Borrower

a
b. Assistance to the members during Natural Disasters

o

Incentives to Golden, Silver and Chhimek Only Members

o

Assistance to Member during Pregnancy for hygiene foods and expenses for
pregnancy health awareness programs

e. Expenses for Hamro Chhimek Hamro Kosh, Discipline member welfare fund and

Amount (NPR.)

899,153,805.06

39,832,094.95
13,138,557.76
45,750,000.00
997,874,457.77

109,628,855.00
2,066,000.00
87,969,328.50

23,896,250.00

self-discipline Programs 6,359,578.74

f.  Members’ Business Promotion and Entrepreneurship development expenses 275,045.00

g. Training and Observation Expenses for Members 1,040,832.00

h. Scholarship Expenses 1,763,700.00

i.  Health Awareness Program Expenses 9,798,227.00
Total Expenses (B) 242,797,816.24

Closing balance as on Ashadh End 2078 (A-B) 755,076,641.53

As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and invest
separately the portion of residual amount of the fund. In compliance with this provision, as per the decision of
the meeting of Board of Directors dated 2078.02.21, the management has invested NPR. 660,000,000 in Fixed
Deposit of various Banks and Financial Institutions and residual amount has been kept in bank account for future
expenditure purpose.

k) Other reserves
Any other reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose are presented under this by disclosing
account heads.

1) Proposed bonus distribution

The board of the microfinance has recommended 3.00 % cash dividend and 27 % bonus shares for the
reported year 2077-78. This proposal is subject to the ratification by the Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders. The proposed distributions shall be recognized in equity in the period in which they are paid.

3.18 Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS

Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the

Y0
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profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.19 Segment Reporting

The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective
department/business managers according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment
representing a strategic business unit. These business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the
Microfinance.

The Microfinance has identified seven segments namely: Province 1, Province 2, Bagmati Province, Gandaki
Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Far West Province as the seven operating segment and the
segment report is set out in Notes 5.4.

Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or those
related to head office are unallocated are included in Bagmati. The unallocated items generally comprise of head
office assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified on
the basis of the location of the branches in 7 different provinces of the country.

3.20 Investment in Associates

For the purpose of consolidation, NAS 28 - Investments in Associates is applied. Associates are entities in
which the Microfinance has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial policies. The
Microfinance holds more than 20%, but less than 50%, of their voting shares.

The microfinance's investments in associates are initially recorded at cost and increased (or decreased) each year
by the entity’s share of the post- acquisition profit/(loss). The entity ceases to recognize its share of the losses of
equity accounted associates when its share of the net assets and amounts due from the entity have been written
off in full, unless it has a contractual or constructive obligation to make good its share of the losses.

As per the directives (4)8/077 issued to microfinances by NRB, the microfinance has to dispose all the investment
within 2 years of investment. As the Microfinance has planned to subsequently dispose the investment in the
said entities which are normally to be considered as the associate the Microfinance has not followed the above-
mentioned method and such investment are presented as Share Investment in the Statement of Financial position
and dividend income if any is shown in Statement of Profit or Loss.
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4. Schedules to the Financial Statements

4.1. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars

Cash in Hand

Balances with BFIs

Money at Call and Short Notice
Other

Total

FY 2077/78

1,800,389.00
1,464,822,152.65
6,555,000,000.00
8,021,622,541.65

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

FY 2076/77

5,303,961.00
2,882,070,296.41
4,227,400,000.00
7,114,774,257.41

Restated
868,416.00
3,467,242,424.23

3,468,110,840.23

Other cash and cash equivalent includes term deposit with maturity period less than 3 month from the date of acquisition.

4.2. Statutory Balances and due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars
Statutory Balances with NRB
Statutory Balances with BFIs
Securities purchased under Resale Agreement
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB
Total

4.3. Placements with Bank & Financial Institutions

Particulars
Placement with Domestic Fls
Less: Allowances for Impairment
Total

There are no domestic placements with maturities more than three months from acquisition date.

4.4. Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts
Others
Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.
Others

Total

Y

FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
594,517,670.00  550,715,020.00
594,517,670.00  550,715,020.00

FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77

FY 2077/78

FY 2076/77

Restated
503,510,020.00

503,510,020.00

Restated

Restated
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4.5. Other Trading Assets

Particulars

Treasury Bills
Government Bonds
NRB Bonds
Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities
Other

Total
Pledged
Non-Pledged

4.6. Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives

Particulars

Loans to Micro-Finance Institutions

Loans to FIs

Loans to Co-operatives

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Other.

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

4.6.1. Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 01
Impairment Loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/Reversal
Amount Written Off

Balance at Ashadh End

4.7. Loans and Advances to Customers

Particulars

Loans and Advances measured at Amortized

Cost

Less: Impairment Allowances
Collective Impairment
Individual Impairment

Net Amount

Loans and Advances measured at FVTPL

Total

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78
25,346,420,382.32

(337,416,830.28)
(120,345,085.75)
24,888,658,466.29

24,888,658,466.29

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

FY 2076/77

FY 2076/77

FY 2076/77

FY 2076/77
19,440,220,786.10

(447,724,140.82)
(70,146,627.25)
18,922,350,018.03

18,922,350,018.03

Restated

Restated

Restated

Restated
19,814,252,715.38

(197,304,322.25)
(37,404,494.75)
19,579,543,898.38

19,579,543,898.38

Collective impairment and individual impairment have been bifurcated as per unified directives to Microfinance 2077.
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4.7.1. Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Product

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Product
25,104,612,911.42

Short Term, Term Loan -

19,356,411,592.33 19,729,130,860.21

Term Loans

25,104,612,911.42 19,356,411,592.33 19,729,130,860.21
5,261,145.00 17,646,028.00 26,316,410.00

Hire Purchase Loans - - -

Long Term, Term Loan

Personal Residential Loans

Staffs Loans 73,320,627.90 66,163,165.77 58,805,445.17
Other - - -
Sub-Total 25,183,194,684.32 19,440,220,786.10 19,814,252,715.38
Interest Receivable 163,225,698.00 - -
Grand Total 25,346,420,382.32 19,440,220,786.10 19,814,252,715.38
4.7.2. Analysis of Loans and Advances - By Collateral

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Secured

Immoveable Assets 3,251,353,337.33 2,798,441,220.74 2,829,380,125.00

4.7.3.

Government Guarantee

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt
Collateral of Government Securities
Group Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other Collateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

Grand Total

Allowance for Impairment

Particulars

Specific Allowance for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 01

Impairment Loss for the year

Charge for the year
Recoveries/Reversals during the year
Write-Offs

Other Movement

Balance at Ashadh End

Collective Allowances for Impairment
Balance at Shrawan 01

Impairment Loss for the year
Charge/(Reversal) for the year

Other Movement

Balance at Ashadh End

Total Allowances for Impairment

4.8. Investment Securities

g

22,021,746,117.99

73,320,927.00
25,346,420,382.32

25,346,420,382.32

FY 2077/78

70,146,627.25

50,198,458.50

120,345,085.75

517,870,768.07

(180,453,937.79)

337,416,830.28
457,761,916.03

16,575,616,399.59
66,163,165.77
19,440,220,786.10

19,440,220,786.10

FY 2076/77

37,404,494.75

32,742,132.50

70,146,627.25

197,304,322.25

250,419,818.57

447,724,140.82
517,870,768.07

16,926,067,145.21
58,805,445.17
19,814,252,715.38

19,814,252,715.38

Restated

12,884,504.50

24,519,990.25

37,404,494.75

165,678,530.10

31,625,792.15

197,304,322.25
234,708,817.00
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Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 338,003,186.81 276,692,829.67 118,296,422.00
Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00
Total 359,403,186.81  298,092,829.67 139,696,422.00

4.8.1. Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated

Debt Securities - - -
Government Bonds - - -
Government Treasury Bills 338,003,186.81 276,692,829.67 118,296,422.00
Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments - - -
Other - - -
Less: Specific Allowances for Impairment - - -
Total 338,003,186.81 276,692,829.67 118,296,422.00

4.8.2. Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI
Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Equity Instruments
Quoted Equity Securities - - -

Unquoted Equity Securities 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00
Total 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00

4.8.3. Information relating to Investment in Equities

FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Equity

Investment in Unquoted Equity
Centre For Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. 10,000.00  10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

100 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100

Paid up

Chhimek Academy Pvt. Ltd. 5,890,000 5,890,000 5,890,000.00 5,890,000.00 5,890,000.00 5,890,000.00
58,900 Ordinary Share of NPR 100

Paid up

Chhimek Bazar Byabastha Co. Ltd 13,500,000 13,500,000 13,500,000.00 13,500,000.00 13,500,000.00 13,500,000.00
135,000 Ordinary Share of NPR. 100

Paid up
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
20,000 Ordinary Share of NPR. 100 ) ) )
Paid up
Total 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00  21,400,000.00  21,400,000.00 21,400,000.00

4.9. Current Tax Assets
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets - - -

Tax Assets of Prior Periods - - -

Current Tax Liabilities

Current year Income Tax Liabilities 44,009,196.85 - 25,671,277.93
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - 20,923,050.62 -
Total (44,009,196.85) (20,923,050.62) (25,671,277.93)

4.10. Investment Properties

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value

Balance as on Shrawan 01. - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year. - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year. - - -
Adjustment/Transfer. - - -
Net Amount - - -
Investment Properties measured at Cost

Balance as on Shrawan 01 - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year - - -
Adjustment/Transfer - - -
Accumulated Depreciation - - -
Accumulated Impairment Loss - - -
Net Amount - - -
Total - - -

Y& Q03 afffes YfAdGaT-2000/ 00T




Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.12. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars Goodwill

Cost

As on Shrawan 01 2076
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh end
2077

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Ashadh end
2078

Amortisation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01. 2076

Amortisation charge for the year

Impairment for the year

Disposals

Adjustment

As on Ashadh end 2077

Impairment for the year

Amortisation charge for the year

Disposals

Adjustment

As on Ashadh end 2078

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value -
As on Ashadh end 2076 -
As on Ashadh end 2077 -
As on Ashadh end 2078 -

Software

Purchased Developed

3,289,550.00

1,288,200.00

4,577,750.00

1,236,220.00

5,813,970.00

299,020.10
787,039.47

1,086,059.57

1,029,265.86

2,115,325.42

3,698,644.58
2,990,529.90
3,491,690.44
3,698,644.58

Other

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

Total

T"etzld‘;;l%dh Ashadh end
2077

3,289,550.00

1,288,200.00

4,577,750.00 4,577,750.00

1,236,220.00

5,813,970.00

299,020.10
787,039.47

1,086,059.57 1,086,059.57

1,029,265.86

2,115,325.42

3,698,644.58 -
2,990,529.90
3,491,690.44
3,698,644.58
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4.13. Deferred Tax

Particulars

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs

Loans and Advances to Customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property and Equipment

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other Temporary Differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carried forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2078
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2077
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity

Particulars

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs

Loans and Advances to Customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property and Equipment

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other Temporary Differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carried forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2077
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan\ 01, 2076
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized in OCI
Deferred Tax expense (income) recognized directly in Equity

203 aIfffcs YlAdGeT-2000/ 06T

Deferred Tax
Assets

31,191,399.48

31,191,399.48

Deferred Tax
Assets

16,035,967.46

16,035,967.46

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

10,015,160.32

10,015,160.32

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

7,581,810.73

7,581,810.73

FY 2077/78
Net Deferred
Tax Assets
/(Liabilities)

21,176,239.16

21,176,239.16

21,176,239.16
(8,454,156.73)
(12,722,082.43)
(15,115,846.93)
2,393,764.50

FY 2076/77
Net Deferred
Tax Assets
/(Liabilities)

8,454,156.73
8,454,156.73

8,454,156.73
1,214,670.99
(9,668,827.72)
(8,945,880.52)
(722,947.20)
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.14. Other Assets

Particulars
Assets held for Sale
Other Non-Banking Assets
Bills Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Income
Prepayments and Deposits
Income Tax Deposit
Deferred Employee Expenditure
Other Assets

Total

FY 2077/78

56,650,062.27
17,160,903.35
2,300,000.00
48,368,731.56
12,328,196.12
136,807,893.30

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

FY 2076/77

42,572,490.87
2,369,666.69
2,300,000.00
53,106,886.62
10,189,807.33
110,538,851.51

Restated

61,715,323.28
277,276.69
2,300,000.00
40,570,978.79
14,526,349.47
119,389,928.23

Deferred Employee Expenditure includes staff amortization cost recognized as per NAS 19. Other asset includes mobilization

advances and General stationery.

4.15. Due to Banks and Financial Institutions

Particulars
Borrowings from BFIs
Settlement and Clearing Accounts
Others

4.16. Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars
Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquidity Facility
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other Payable to NRB

4.17. Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars
Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts
Others
Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts.
Others

&0

Total

Total

Total

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78

FY 2076/77

FY 2076/77

1,198,967.00
1,198,967.00

FY 2076/77

Restated

Restated

2,181,935.00
2,181,935.00

Restated
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4.18. Deposits from Customers

Particulars

Institutional Customers:
Term Deposits.
Call Deposits
Others.
Individual Customers:
Term Deposits
Saving Deposits

Saving from Members
Others

Total

FY 2077/78

48,790,356.28
9,809,003.00
540,345,698.81
21,840,431,206.70

22,439,376,264.79

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

FY 2076/77

1,700,000.00

52,477,922.28
7,431,000.00
897,801,232.36
17,706,553,476.07

18,665,963,630.71

Individual Saving Deposits Includes Mero Sajilo Bachhat of Public Depositors.

1.19. Borrowings

Particulars

Domestic Borrowings
Nepal Government
Other Licensed Institutions
Other
Sub Total
Foreign Borrowings

Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions
Sub Total

4.20. Provisions

Particulars

Provisions for Redundancy
Provisions for Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts
Other Provisions

1.20.1. Movement in Provision

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 01

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of Discount
Balance at Ashadh end

203 aIfffcs YlAdGeT-2000/ 06T

Total

Total

FY 2077/78

6,217,521,409.64

6,217,521,409.64

6,217,521,409.64

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78
17,064,376.66

(17,064,376.66)

FY 2076/77

4,073,346,786.59

4,073,346,786.59

4,073,346,786.59

FY 2076/77

17,064,376.66
17,064,376.66

FY 2076/77
17,064,376.66

17,064,376.66

Restated

34,525,856.05
4,465,808.00
869,145,218.43
14,479,189,343.86

15,387,326,226.34

Restated

4,479,520,993.88

4,479,520,993.88

4,479,520,993.88

Restated

17,064,376.66
17,064,376.66

Restated
17,064,376.66

17,064,376.66
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.21. Other Liabilities

4.21.1.

Particulars

Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations
Liabilities for long service leave
Short term employee benefits

Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposits

Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease
Employee bonus payable

Other Liabilities

Total

Defined Benefit Obligation

FY 2077/78
(3,963,994.00)
57,589,280.00
13,712,259.69

140,501,482.26
27,160,156.62

228,787,827.71
50,949,935.98
514,736,948.26

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

FY 2076/77
(1,263,631.00)
43,657,355.00
13,036,514.69

76,003,618.98
3,375,795.00
23,023,445.15
25,880,146.41
125,356,428.01
68,977,116.42
378,046,788.66

The amounts recognized in the statements of financial positions are as follows:

Particulars

Present value of funded obligations

Total present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

4.21.2. Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

Particulars
Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total

FY 2077/78
252,166,236.00
252,166,236.00
256,130,230.00
(3,963,994.00)
(3,963,994.00)

FY 2077/78

256,130,230.00
256,130,230.00

4.21.3. Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

&2

Particulars
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end

FY 2077/78
222,565,232.00

(7,979,215.00)
(8,343,161.00)
45,923,380.00

252,166,236.00

FY 2076/77
222,565,232.00
222,565,232.00
223,828,863.00

(1,263,631.00)

(1,263,631.00)

FY 2076/77

223,828,863.00
223,828,863.00

FY 2076/77
196,421,527.00
2,409,824.00
(17,786,064.00)
41,519,945.00
222,565,232.00

Restated
(1,387,776.00)
37,302,378.00
12,226,114.69

12,165,726.52
5,394,412.00
31,711,266.81
26,422,822.19
145,013,068.36
43,020,673.15
311,868,685.72

Restated
196,421,527.00
196,421,527.00
197,809,303.00

(1,387,776.00)

(1,387,776.00)

Restated

197,809,303.00
197,809,303.00

Restated

62,218,843.00
121,325,608.00
(14,868,703.00)

27,745,779.00
196,421,527.00
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4.21.4. Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end

4.21.5. Amount recognized in profit or loss

Particulars
Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

FY 2077/78

223,828,863.00
40,644,528.00
(8,343,161.00)

256,130,230.00

FY 2077/78
26,029,662.00
19,893,718.00

Total 45,923,380.00
4.21.6. Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars FY 2077/78
Actuarial (gain)/loss (7,979,215.00)
Total (7,979,215.00)
4.21.7. Actuarial assumptions
Particulars FY 2077/78
Discount rate 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00%
Future salary increases 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 1.00%
4.22. Debt securities issued
Particulars FY 2077/78
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit
or loss
Debt securities issued at amortized cost
Total
4.23. Subordinated Liabilities
Particulars FY 2077/78

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component

Other

Total -

203 aIfffcs YlAdGeT-2000/ 06T

FY 2076/77

197,809,303.00
43,805,624.00

(17,786,064.00)

223,828,863.00

FY 2076/77
24,139,229.00
17,380,716.00

41,519,945.00

FY 2076/77
2,409,824.00
2,409,824.00

FY 2076/77
9.00%
0.00%
6.00%
1.00%

FY 2076/77

FY 2076/77

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Restated
193,506,959.00
19,171,047.00
(14,868,703.00)

197,809,303.00

Restated
22,146,083.00
5,599,696.00

27,745,779.00

Restated
121,325,608.00
121,325,608.00

Restated
9.00%
0.00%
6.00%
1.00%

Restated

Restated
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.24. Share capital

4.24.1.

Particulars
Ordinary shares
Convertible preference shares (equity component
only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component
only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)

Total

Ordinary Shares
Particulars

Authorized Capital
25,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each

Issued capital
18,300,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each

Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
18,300,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each

Total
4.24.2. Ordinary share ownership
Particulars

Percent
Domestic ownership (Promoter) 51.00%
Nepal Government 0.00%
"A" class licensed institution 25.70%
Other licensed institutions 0.00%
Other Institutions 9.61%
Other 15.69%
Domestic ownership (Public) 49.00%
Nepal Government 0.00%
"A" class licensed institution 1.62%
Other licensed institutions 0.35%
Other Institutions 10.91%
Other 36.11%
Foreign ownership Promoter 0.00%
Foreign ownership Public 0.00%
Total  100.00%

&8

FY 2077/78
1,830,000,000.00

1,830,000,000.00

FY 2077/78
2,500,000,000.00

1,830,000,000.00

1,830,000,000.00

1,830,000,000.00

FY 2077/78
Amount (NPR.)
933,300,200.00

470,244,200.00
175,949,200.00
287,106,800.00

896,699,800.00
29,670,600.00
6,481,100.00
199,685,300.00
660,862,800.00

1,830,000,000.00
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FY 2076/77
1,500,000,000.00

1,500,000,000.00

FY 2076/77
2,000,000,000.00

1,500,000,000.00

1,500,000,000.00

Restated
1,180,000,000.00

1,180,000,000.00

Restated
2,000,000,000.00

1,180,000,000.00

1,180,000,000.00

1,500,000,000.00 1,180,000,000.00
FY 2076/77

Percent Amount (NPR.)
51.00% 765,000,000.00
0.00% -
26.19% 392,873,100.00
0.00% -
9.12% 136,819,700.00
15.69% 235,307,200.00
49.00% 735,000,000.00
0.00% -
7.76% 116,406,239.00
0.78% 11,711,483.17
9.51% 142,660,314.31
30.95% 464,221,963.92
0.00% -
0.00% -
100.00% 1,500,000,000.00
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4.25. Reserves

Particulars
Statutory General Reserve
Dividend Equalization Reserve
Exchange Equalization Reserve
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve
Regulatory Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve
Capital Reserve
Asset’s Revaluation Reserve
Fair Value Reserve
Client Protection Fund
Actuarial Gain
Special Reserve
Other Reserve

4.26. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars
Contingent liabilities
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment
Lease Commitment
Litigation
Others

FY 2077/78
1,138,721,069.37

25,554,416.28
118,422,978.40
19,400,000.00

755,076,641.53
(81,029,351.90)

1,976,145,753.68

FY 2077/78

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

FY 2076/77
784,449,914.25

53,563,721.66
19,400,000.00

899,153,805.06
(86,614,802.40)

1,669,952,638.57

FY 2076/77

The microfinance does not have any contingent liabilities and commitments till date.

4.26.1. Capital commitments

Restated
652,021,945.71

18,860,579.14
19,400,000.00

1,049,990,525.19
(84,927,925.60)

1,655,345,124.44

Restated

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars

FY 2077/78

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
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4.26.2. Lease commitments

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 Restated
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease, where the Institution is lessee
Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years - - -
Sub total - - -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating lease, where the Laghubitta is lessee

Not later than 1 year - - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -

Later than 5 years - - -

Sub total - - -

Grand total - - -

4.26.3: Litigation

The Microfinance’s litigations are generally related to its ordinary course of business pending on various jurisdiction.
Litigations are mainly in the nature of income tax which is explained in detail in Note no: 3.10.1

4.27. Interest Income

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Cash and cash equivalent 370,782,268.68 363,077,188.95
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -

Loans and advances to customers 3,691,395,236.80 3,340,669,078.70
Investment securities 4,666,575.82 5,601,407.67
Loan and advances to staff 12,855,536.73 13,946,427.94
Other Interest Income 148,106,958.00 109,472,067.31

Total interest income 4,227,806,576.03 3,832,766,170.57

Loan and advances to staff includes interest income from fair value of staff loan. Other Interest Income includes interest
refund from Pension deposit.

4.28. Interest Expenses

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77
Due to bank and financial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 47,736.26 96,735.16
Deposits from customers 1,673,206,961.00 1,598,894,065.00
Borrowing 286,176,757.43 447,978,079.85
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 38,588,226.30 21,489,465.70
-Client Protection Fund 38,588,226.30 21,489,465.70

Total Interest expense 1,998,019,680.99 2,068,458,345.71

&&

Q03 afffes YfAdGaT-2000/ 00T



fBoics oTgfad AT e ffeies

4.29. Fees and Commission Income

Particulars
Loan administration fees
Service fees
Commitment fees
Card Issuance fees
Prepayment and swap fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees
Other fees and commission income

Total Fees and Commission Income

4.29.1. Other Fees and Commission income

Particulars
Remittance Fees-Internal
Remittance Fees-External
Membership Fees
Pass book income
Others Miscellaneous

4.30. Fees and Commission Expenses

Particulars
ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage
DD/TT/Swift fees.
Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense

Total

Total Fees and Commission Expenses

4.31. Net Trading Income

Particulars
Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transition
Other
Net trading income
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FY 2077/78

529,587,028.00

1,440,942.33
531,027,970.33

FY 2077/78
387,763.00
45,386.70

1,007,792.63
1,440,942.33

FY 2077/78

76,383.94
76,383.94

FY 2077/78

FY 2076/77

352,109,679.00

789,241.73
352,898,920.73

FY 2076/77
412,568.25
69,149.48
307,224.00
300.00

789,241.73

FY 2076/77

280,604.99
280,604.99

FY 2076/77
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4.32.0ther Operating Income

Particulars
Foreign exchange revaluation gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other

Total

4.33.Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFIs
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total
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FY 2077/78

641,255.63
61,182.60

702,438.23

FY 2077/78
(60,108,852.04)
(181,355.11)

(60,290,207.15)

Impairment reversal on financial investment includes Write Back from Provision for Other Assets.

4.34. Personnel Expenses

&C

Particulars
Salary
Allowances
Gratuity Expense
Provident Fund
Uniform
Training & development expenses
Leave encashment
Medical
Insurance
Employee’s Incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense
Finance expense under NFRS
Other expenses related to staff
Subtotal
Employees Bonus

Grand total

FY 2077/78
292,343,588.15
163,250,618.87
44,203,816.30
26,865,141.40
11,582,760.00
4,946,233.71
17,932,655.10
8,038,087.50
1,535,922.00
6,051,093.29

7,811,535.50
32,382,197.36
616,943,649.18
211,503,601.77
828,447,250.96

Employee Bonus has been calculated @10% before bonus and taxes of NFRS Profit.

FY 2076/77

641,250.00

641,250.00

FY 2076/77
283,161,951.07
19,722.03

283,181,673.10

FY 2076/77
287,586,986.06
163,406,637.63
40,802,182.59
26,413,772.36
11,873,520.00
8,808,097.48
23,158,666.43
8,251,701.00
1,678,654.00
7,206,838.04

9,357,543.14
32,914,669.09
621,459,267.82
108,665,777.83
730,125,045.65
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4.35. Other Operating Expenses

Particulars

Directors' fee

Directors' expense

Auditors' remuneration

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense

Operating lease expense

Operating expense of investment properties

Corporate social responsibility expense
Client Protection Expenses
Onerous lease provisions

Other Expenses

4.35.1. Office Administration Expense

Particulars

Light, Electricity & Water

Repair & Maintenance

Repair & Maintenance-Building
Repair & Maintenance-Vehicles
Computer and Accessories

Office Equipment & Furniture
Repair & Maintenance-Others
Insurance

Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax
Office Equipment, Furniture Repair
Travelling Allowances & Expenses
Printing & Stationery

Periodicals & Books
Entertainment

Advertisements

Donation

Security Expenses

Deposit/Loan Guarantee Premium
Other-Annual Function Expense
Other-Internet Expenses
Other-Office Expenses
Other-Registration and Renewal

Other-Meeting Expenses
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FY 2077/78
596,500.00
303,725.00
717,832.50

3,890.00
11,947,339.65
72,709,389.36
32,811,007.65

3,317,687.56
Total 122,407,371.72

FY 2077/78
3,625,279.00
343,732.00
1,887,123.09

767,404.00
3,484,645.51
19,207,962.21
1,080,739.39
15,197,820.74
20,381,691.63
208,139.00
1,094,254.41
5,000.00
206,406.90

901,662.50

1,667,028.48
2,650,500.50

Total 72,709,389.36

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

FY 2076/77
450,000.00
474,146.50
652,575.00

6,295.00
7,741,476.50
63,267,922.71
30,088,028.33
5,668,255.91

4,156,348.47
112,505,048.42

FY 2076/77
3,602,719.14

1,670,400.92
1,582,409.89

955,280.99
4,354,512.25
17,059,893.94
610,574.43
15,048,942.78
13,443,216.35
340,467.10

911,873.53

922,431.00
1,607,535.39
1,157,665.00

63,267,922.71

&b



Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

4.35.2. Others Expense

Particulars
AGM Expenses
Share Issue expenses
Entertainment expenses
Lunch expenses
Government Dues and Taxes
Total

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

FY 2077/78
824,266.00
6,105.00
1,687,349.00
799,967.56
3,317,687.56

Share issue expenses has been reversed in profit and loss account and routed through Equity.

4.36. Depreciation and Amortization

Particulars
Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortization of intangible assets
Total

4.37. Non-Operating Income

Particulars
Recovery of loan written off -
Other income
Total

4.37.1. Other Income

Particulars
Grant income
Other
Total

4.38. Non-Operating Expenses

Particulars
Loan written off -
Redundancy provision -
Expense of restructuring -
Other expense -
Total

4.39. Income Tax Expenses

Particulars
Current tax expense
Current year
Adjustments for prior years
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

Total income tax expense

FY 2077/78
30,473,624.51
1,029,265.86
31,502,890.37

FY 2077/78

64,158,802.22
64,158,802.22

FY 2077/78
40,651,148.39
23,507,653.83
64,158,802.22

FY 2077/78

FY 2077/78

586,063,934.82
18,728,552.49
(15,115,846.93)

589,676,640.38

FY 2076/77
1,206,527.00
1,075,800.47
1,874,021.00

4,156,348.47

FY 2076/77
32,150,504.18
787,039.00
32,937,543.18

FY 2076/77
30,100,016.68
30,100,016.68

FY 2076/77
28,289,678.66
1,810,338.02
30,100,016.68

FY 2076/77

211,921.00

211,921.00

FY 2076/77

306,352,928.12
20,923,050.62

(8,945,880.52)

318,330,098.22

1o
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4.39.1. Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77

Profit before tax 1,903,532,415.99 988,706,175.93
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 571,059,724.80 296,611,852.78
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 29,283,831.17 33,813,213.20

Less: Tax effect on exempt income -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (14,279,621.15) (20,857,885.23)
Total income tax expense 586,063,934.82 309,567,180.75
Effective tax rate 30.79% 31.31%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information

bR

5.1. Risk Management

In particular, the microfinance program provides financial services to the needy and poor households. Since people in such
households lack awareness and business skills, one has been very careful while doing financial transactions with such
people. This type of financial service is also more prone to risk as financial services have to be provided by making the
person aware and capable of such services. Therefore, identification of risk has been carried out and adequate control system
has been adopted in order to mitigate such current and possible future risks in the Microfinance. The robust risk management
capabilities are imperative in order to achieve an effective risk management framework and contain the risks associated
with the business, a fully functional Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying reporting, controlling and
managing credit risk, operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management Committee oversees global,
macro, micro and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put
to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board committee to discuss the reports
thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its sole and exclusive
function, responsibility for the risk management policies of the Microfinance and oversight of implementation of risk
management framework of Microfinance. The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities with regard to risk appetite that the Microfinance is able and willing to assume in its exposures and
business activities, risk management, compliance framework, and governance structure that supports it. It periodically
reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether
the internal control and risk management system is adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of
business. The committee is to review the overall risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk
management system. The Risk Management Committee comprises of following Members:

S.N. Name Designation
1 Karna Bahadur Ghale Coordinator
2 Manoj Kumar Yadav Member
3 Dilip Kumar Shrestha Member-Secretary
4 Mesh Bahadur Basnet Member

Risk Governance

Microfinance implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the microfinance
and has trained risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs,
well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk Management Committee is responsible
for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk & Credit risk.

The Microfinance’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
Microfinance's risk blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same. The
effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, senior
management, and internal audit committee.

5.1.1. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a
security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. Liquidity risk arises because of
the possibility that the Microfinance might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur
when funding needed for liquid asset positions is not available to the Microfinance on acceptable terms. Due to lack
of liquidity, entities are not able to invest as per the demand of the customer, they are not able to repay the savings and
other legal obligations on time. Therefore, the microfinance has managed the liquidity as per its requirement in time
to prevent such a situation.

5.1.2. Interest Rate Risk
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Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of a bond or other fixed-
rate investment. The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rates:

a. Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabilities.

b. When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not match,
the amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

c. In order to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the Microfinance has prepared quarterly (October,
December, March and mid-July) details and submitted them to the Supervision Department of Nepal Rastra Bank
within fifteen days after the end of the quarter.

5.1.3. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability that any creditor will not be able to repay the loan as per the condition accepted by
the borrower. Credit is the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution. The future of the financial
institution is at stake when the borrower is unable to repay the loan borrower had agreed at the time of taking the loan.
Therefore, it is necessary to study the impacting indicators to get information about the condition of the loan at risk.
In order to prevent the loss of the loan invested and to minimize the risks related to it, Standard loan disbursement
procedure is followed to reduce the risk accordingly. Since every employee involved in the process of approving
the loan and investing will be assigned a certain responsibility, the concerned employee will have to invest the loan
realizing their responsibility. The following procedures/practices have been followed:

e  Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacity for the demanded loan,
e Invest in loans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

e  Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the fund is utilized for
income generating activities/businesses,

e  Motivated members to increase savings,

e  Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan application, for business
loans,

e  Taking necessary documents of secured property, if collateral loan,
e  C(lassify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank,
e  Disbursement of loans within the limits prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank,

e  Continuously monitor and inspect the loan from the unit manager, branch manager and monitoring level. If
the interest is not paid on time or with delay, the branch should report to the monitoring, the monitoring to the
regional manager and the regional manager to the chief executive officer within 24 hours with detailed details.

e In the monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score will be given in this title including the title of
loan recovery of the branch to be monitored.

e  Each branch will be audited twice a year. While conducting such audit, it is compulsory for Internal Auditors
to inspect the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the details observed in meetings through Audit
report, either observed compliance and other discrepancies or not.

5.1.4. Operational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. In this program, small but large
number of transactions has been done, decentralized working method has been adopted, more focus has been given
on area expansion, priority has been given to cost reduction, Due to lack of integrated information system, expansion
of programs in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to provide services as per
the needs of the customers, there is always a possibility of operational risk in this program. The entity has arranged
the necessary staff to carry out various responsibilities for daily operations. All the employees have to carry out their
post responsibilities in the working process within the policy rules specified by the entity. But sometimes due to the
negligence of the employees and personal interests, the organization is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules.
This type of risk is likely to reduce the entity's income, the increase entity's credit risk (Reputation Risk). Since the
operational risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal control system is strengthened.
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5.1.5. Market Risk

The Microfinance recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Microfinance
caused due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange
rates and volatilities of those prices. Microfinance has an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which
meets periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities,
articulating interest rate, view of Microfinance, funding policy and balance sheet management. A fter Understanding the
market conditions and demands, the Board and the management bring programs to suit the potentials and conditions of
the market, and reduce the risk by providing appropriate responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom
based on their capabilities. For this, the internal control system has been strengthened.

The following has been considered in market analysis:

e Information about competitors' services (programs) and interest rates

e Attitude of the members towards the organization

e  Perception of other banks and financial institutions towards this microfinance
e  Cost of service

e  Fluctuations from changes in policy rules

e  Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers

e  Customer dropout/retention rate

5.1.6. Institutional or Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularly observable if the company
experiences a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on compliance risk, it is a leading
factor in modern risk management. In order to manage this risk, the following things has been considered:

e  Strategies has been decided or modified according to the overall economic and social environment of the country,
*  Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,

*  Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and desires of our customers
*  Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization,

5.1.7. Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in
a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss
or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external
events. To achieve this, the Board and management has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the entity's system of
internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The entity has its own Internal
Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit Department
monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company
through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as
determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit
Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating
immediate corrective measures.

5.1.8. Compliance Risk

The Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
transparency and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the day-to-day operations the three lines
of defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Microfinance. The first
line of defense lies with the respective Microfinance departments and units, which are responsible for ensuring that
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compliance risks are identified, understood and reported to the management and to Compliance Officer. The second
line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors the compliance and integrity risks and
coordinates its control activities with the Risk Management Unit. The Chief Compliance Officer reports to the CEO.
Internal Audit Department is the third line of defense. The Compliance function assists the Microfinance in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the institution, its operations and the
personal conduct of staff members.

5.1.9. Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions
and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same
— to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement date
from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3-
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

2077-2078 2076-2077
Particulars Level I Level 11 Level IIT Levell  Level II Level I11

Financial Investments Available for Sale
Quoted Equities - -
Unquoted Equities
Centre for Microfinance Pvt Ltd 10,000 10,000
(100 ordinary shares of NPR.100 Paid Up)
Chhimek Academy Pvt Ltd 5,890,000 5,890,000
(58,900 Ordinary Share of NPR. 100 Paid up)
Chhimek Bazar Byabastha Co. Ltd 13,500,000 13,500,000
(135,000 Ordinary Share of NPR. 100 Paid up)
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd 2,000,000 2,000,000
(20,000 Ordinary Share of NPR.100 Paid up)
Quoted Mutual Funds - -

Total 21,400,000 21,400,000

5.2. Capital management

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately
capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed institution providing
financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(1) Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage
all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for
maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing
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all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Microfinance has BODs
approved risk management policies for proper governance. The Microfinance has developed a comprehensive ICAAP
document which is subject to review every year. The ICAAP has two major components; first is an internal process
to identify, measure, manage and report risks to which the microfinance is exposed or could be exposed in the future;
and second is an internal process to plan and manage a microfinance’s capital so as to ensure adequate capital. The
microfinance prepares the ICAAP report annually complying with the NRB requirement. The report is reviewed and

analyzed by Risk Management Committee and Board.

(ii) Qualitative disclosures

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

e  Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Paid up Equity Share Capital
Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares
Share Premium
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
Statutory General Reserves
Retained Earnings
Un-audited current year cumulative profit
Special Reserve Fund
Capital Adjustment Reserves
Dividend Equalization Reserves
Capital Redemption Reserves Fund
Deferred Tax Reserve
Less: Goodwill
Less: Intangible Assets
Less: Fictitious Assets
Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Less: Investment in equity of licensed Financial Institutions
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & utilized
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings
Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital

e Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
Subordinated Term Debt
Hybrid Capital Instruments
General loan loss provision
Exchange Equalization Reserves
Investments Adjustment Reserves
Assets Revaluation Reserves
Special Reserve Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital

Amount (NPR.)
1,830,000,000.00

40,967,834.00

1,138,721,069.37
1,223,997,855.81

21,176,239.16

19,390,000.00
15,200,000.00

4,177,920,520.02

Amount (NPR.)

337,416,830.28

19,400,000.00

356,816,830.28
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e  Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars
Core Capital (Tier 1)
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Amount (NPR.)

Total Capital Fund

Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)

At the month end of Ashadh, 2078

A. On- Balance-Sheet Items

S.N. Description

1 Cash Balance

2 | Gold (Tradable)

3 | NRB Balance

4 Investment to Govt. Bond

5 Investment to NRB Bond

6  Loan against Own FD

7  Loan against Govt. Bond

8  Accrued interests on Govt. bond

9  Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs Self-

employment Fund

10  Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions

11 | Loan against other banks' and financial institutions' FD

12 Foreign bank balance

13 Money at call

14 Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee

15  Investment to internationally rated Banks

16  Inter-bank lending

17  Investment on shares/debentures/bonds

18  Other investments

19  Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount

20  Fixed assets

21  Net interest receivables (Toral IR - 8 - Interest supsense)

22 Net Non-Banking Asset

23 Other assets (Except advance tax payment)

24  Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding the

limits
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A)

203k affes YfrIEa- 2000/ 0T

Weight
(%)

S O O O O O o o o

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
150

4,177,920,520.02
356,816,830.28
4,534,737,350.30

Current period

Amount (NPR.)
1,800,389.00

594,517,670.00

338,003,186.81

8019822153

21,400,000.00

25,346,420,382.32
264,569,265.82

136,807,893.30

34,723,340,939.90

RWA

1,603,964,430.53

21,400,000.00
25,346,420,382.32
264,569,265.82

136,807,893.30

27,373,161,971.97
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

S oTgfad e HAT fAl1es

B. Off-Balance-Sheet Items

L. Weight Current period
S.N. Description (%)  Amount (NPR.) RWA
1 Bills collection 0 -
2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10 -
3 | L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding value) 20 -
4  Guarantee against International rated bank's counter 20 -
guarantee
5 | L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding value) 50 -
6 | Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50 -
7  Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50 -
8  Advance payment guarantee 100 -
9 | Financial and other guarantee 100 -
10  Irrevocable loan commitment 100 -
11 Possible liabilities for income tax 100 -
12 | All types of possible liabilities including acceptance 100 -
13 | Rediscounted bills 100 -
14 | Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100 -
15 | Unpaid guarantee claims 200 -
16 = Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of Total 100 685,735,105.26 685,735,105.26
Assets)
Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 685,735,105.26 685,735,105.26
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 28,058,897,077.23
C. Total Capital Fund (A+B) 4,534,737,350.30
D. Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:
1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 2,244,711,766.18
2 | Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 1,122,355,883.09
3 Capital Fund maintained (in %) 16.16%
4  Core Capital maintained (in %) 14.89%

Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):

Particulars Gross NPL Loan Loss Provision Net NPL
Restructured - - -
Sub- Standard 25,388,579.00 6,347,144.75 19,041,434.25
Doubtful 39,566,356.00 19,783,178.00 19,783,178.00
Loss 94,214,763.00 94,214,763.00 -
Total 159,169,698.00 120,345,085.75 38,824,612.25

5.3.Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

As on Ashadh End 2078
Particulars Amo &';%CO“ FVTPL | FVTOCI | Total (NPR.)
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,021,622,542 - - 8,021,622,542
Statutory Balances & due from NRB 594,517,670 - - 594,517,670
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -

bt
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

As on Ashadh End 2078

Particulars Am"&ﬁiﬁ"“ FVTPL | FVTOCI | Total (NPR.)
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives - - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 24,888,658,466 - - 24,888,658,466
Investment Securities 359,403,187 - - 359,403,187
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property - - - -
Other Assets 136,807,893 - - 136,807,893
Total Financial Assets 34,001,009,758 - - 34,001,009,758
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 22,439,376,265 - - 22,439,376,265
Borrowings 6,217,521,410 - - 6,217,521,410
Other Liabilities 514,736,948 - - 514,736,948
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 29,171,634,623 - - 29,171,634,623
As on Ashadh End 2077
Particulars Am"(';';gf)c"“ FVTPL | FVTOCI Total (NPR.)
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,114,774,257 - - 7,114,774,257
Statutory Balances & due from NRB 550,715,020 - - 550,715,020
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives - - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 18,922,350,018 - - 18,922,350,018
Investment Securities 298,092,830 - - 298,092,830
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - -
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property - - - -
Other Assets 110,538,852 - - 110,538,852
Total Financial Assets 26,996,470,977.00 - - 26,996,470,977.00
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 1,198,967 - - 1,198,967
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 18,665,963,631 - - 18,665,963,631
Borrowings 4,073,346,787 - - 4,073,346,787
Other Liabilities 378,046,789 - - 378,046,789
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 23,118,556,174 - - 23,118,556,174
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5.4. Operating Segment Information
5.4.1.General information

A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
losses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the microfinance,
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation
to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available is termed
as operating segment.

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven
reporting segments of the microfinance for the purpose of financial reporting:

a. Province 1

b. Province 2

c. Bagmati Province
d. Gandaki Province
e. Lumbini Province
f.  Karnali Province
g. Far West Province

5.4.2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Province 1 Province 2 Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Karnali Sud;:g‘;snh:ehlm Total (NPR.)
Revenues
from external 678,000,767.41 1,463,367,114.75 1,806,636,839.55 433,261,828.79 907,121,332.15 235,153,097.12 273,068,760.30  5,796,609,740
customers
Inter Segment
Expenses/ )
revenues
Net Revenue 678,000,767 1,463,367,115 1,806,636,840 433,261,829 907,121,332 235,153,097 273,068,760  5,796,609,740
Interest revenue | 558,064,426.17  1,226,569,036.78  840,644,977.63  319,823,431.29 705,102,073.22 186,502,818.77 220,062,578.67 4,056,769,343
Interest expense | 230,986,783.62  448339,188.57  529,676,317.25 200,184,905.36 396,438,231.69  82,369,198.56 110,005,055.94 1,998,019,681
Net interest
expenses/ 327,077,643 778,209,848 310,968,660 119,638,526 308,663,842 104,133,620 110,057,523 2,058,749,662
revenue
Depreciation and 4,762,256 4,723,125 11,534,164 2,110,629 4,384,798 1,233,949 2753969 31,502,890
amortisation
/S(ii‘gem profit 322,315,386 773486723 299434497 117,527,897  304279,044 102,899,671 107,303,554 2,027,246,771
Impairment of i
assets
Segment assets 4,086,773,630 8,287,075,350  12,715,402,207  2,178,285,675 5,040,383,653  1,294,769,396 1,722,632,946 35,325,322,857
lsi;lg)li:lj:ir::s 3,891,519,694 7,735,855,312  12,859,716,289  2,037,726,924 4,713,008,253  1,220,206,983 1,658,040,919 34,116,074,373
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
a. Revenue Amount (NPR.)
Total revenues for reportable segments 5,796,609,740
Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity’s revenues 5,796,609,740

To
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

b. Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 2,027,246,771
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts: (95,299,507)
Profit before income tax 1,931,947,264
c. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 35,325,322,857

Other assets

Unallocated amounts

(1,006,995,541)

Entity’s assets 34,318,327,316
d. Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 34,116,074,373

Other liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

(4,888,748,894)

Entity’s liabilities 29,227,325,479
5.4.3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The Microfinance has determined segments based on the provinces.
5.4.4. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas:
Areas Amount (NPR.)
Province 1 4,086,773,629.78
Province 2 8,287,075,349.80
Bagmati 12,715,402,207.37
Gandaki 2,178,285,675.24
Lumbini 5,040,383,653.10
Karnali 1,294,769,396.09
Far West 1,722,632,945.72
Total 35,325,322,857.10

5.4.5. Information about major customers
The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.
5.5. Share options and share based payment

The Microfinance does not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees. Thus, during the
reporting period the Microfinance does not have any the transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2 “Share
based payments”.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.
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5.7 Related Party Disclosures
5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. Name Relationship Date of Dz}te of l).ate of
Investment  appointment retirement
1 Biswamitra Shrestha Charmain 2073/09/13 = 2077/09/29
2 Rishi Raj Joshi Chairman 2077/09/29 -
3 Manoj Kumar Yadav Director 2076/01/06 -
4  Karna Bahadur Ghale Director 2073/09/13 -
5 Rita Pant Director 2075/01/01 -
6  Anup Maskay Director 2073/05/27 -
7 | Ram Sogarth Sah Director 2077/04/14 -
8 | Prakash Raj Bista Director 2077/09/29 -
9  Chola Raj Sharma Joshi Chief Executive Officer 2076/10/06 -

In above list, 2077.09.29 is the date of appointment of Rishi Raj Joshi as Chairman. However, earlier he was appointed
as director since 2074.07.24

5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees (NPR.)
1 Board Meeting 16 530,000
2 Audit Committee Meeting 5 31,500
3 Risk Management Committee 3 21,000
4 Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 2 7,000
5 Others 2 7,000
Total 596,500

Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities
S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)

1 Short Term Employee Benefits 3,020,602.04
2 Retirement Benefits -
3 Others -
Total 3,020,602.04

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone, Medical Insurance, Accidental Insurance,
Travelling Allowance as per the approved employee facilities of the Microfinance.

5.8. Merger and Acquisition

The Microfinance has neither entered into merger not into acquisition by any other Microfinance institutions
5.9. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities

The microfinance doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.
5.10. Events after reporting date

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after the
reporting period.
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRS

5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity

Particular

Total equity under Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:

Impairment on loan and advances

Fair value & employees benefit accounting of
staff loan

Lease accounting

Measurement of investment securities at fair
value

Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortization of debt securities issued
Deferred tax
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income
Other
Adjustment for Proposed dividend
Client protection fund
CSR fund
Total Adjustment to equity
Total Equity under NFRSs

5.11.2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Particular

Previous GAAP

Adjustments under NFRSs:

Interest income

Impairment of loan and advances

Employees benefit amortization under staff loan
Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense

Amortization expense of debt securities
Other Operating Income

Interest expense

Depreciation & Amortization
Other-Deferred tax

Other-Share issue expenses
Personnel Expenses

Total Adjustment to profit or loss

Profit or loss under NFRSs
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs
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Explanatory
Note

As at
01.04.2076
(Transition Date)

3,614,087,289

13,595,908

203,157,895

216,753,802
3,830,841,092

Explanatory

Note

As at
31.03.2077
(End of last period presented
under previous GAAP)

3,980,019,013

17,690,892

105,000,000

122,690,892
4,102,709,905

Profit/(Loss) for the year
(the latest period presented
under previous GAAP)
662,139,843

9,357,543
(9,357,543)
8,259,801

(2,477,940)
2,454,374
8,236,235

670,376,078

(1,686,877)

668,689,201
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

5.11.3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

Particulars

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments
Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-
operatives

Loans and Advances to Customers
Investment Securities

Current Tax Assets

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates
Investment Property

Property and Equipment
Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Deferred Tax Assets

Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial
Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative Financial Instruments
Deposits from Customers
Borrowings

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Debt Securities Issued
Subordinated Liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As at 01.04.2076
(Date of Transition)
Explanatory Opening
Note . Effect of NFRSs
Previous L.
GAAP Transition statement
to NFRSs of Financial
Position

3,468,110,840 - 3,468,110,840
503,510,020 - 503,510,020
3.1 19,620,114,877 (40,570,979)  19,579,543,898
139,696,422 - 139,696,422
242,447,619 - 242,447,619
2,990,530 - 2,990,530
32 78,818,949 = 40,570,979 119,389,928
24,055,689,258 24,055,689,258
2,181,935 - 2,181,935
15,387,326,226 - 15,387,326,226
4,479,520,994 - 4,479,520,994
25,671,278 - 25,671,278
17,064,377 - 17,064,377
33 (4,612,147) 5,826,818 1,214,671
34 331,291,411 | (19,422,725) 311,868,686
20,238,444,074 (13,595,908) 20,224,848,167
1,180,000,000 - 1,180,000,000
40,967,834 - 40,967,834
35 851,392,153 103,135,980 954,528,133
3.6 1,744,885,197  (89,540,072) 1,655,345,124
3,817,245,184 13,595,908 3,830,841,092
24,055,689,258 - 24,055,689,258

f&dich gfa i

As at 31.03.2077
(End of last period presented u
GAAP)
Cumulative
Previous e Effect of
GAAP Transition to
NFRSs
7,114,774,257 -
550,715,020 -
18,965,016,024 = (42,666,006)
298,092,830 -
250,836,682 -
3,491,690 -
16,035,967 -
67,872,846 42,666,006
27,266,835,316
1,198,967 -
18,665,963,631 -
4,073,346,787 -
20,923,051 -
17,064,377 -
- 7,581,811
403,319,491 = (25,272,702)
23,181,816,303  (17,690,892)
1,500,000,000 -
40,967,834 -
771,447,771 | 120,341,662
1,772,603,408  (102,650,770)
4,085,019,013 17,690,892
27,266,835,316 -

JIAT AldAcs

nder previous

Amount as per
NFRSs

7,114,774,257
550,715,020

18,922,350,018
298,092,830

250,836,682
3,491,690
16,035,967
110,538,852
27,266,835,316

1,198,967
18,665,963,631
4,073,346,787
20,923,051
17,064,377
7,581,811
378,046,789

23,164,125,411

1,500,000,000
40,967,834
891,789,433
1,669,952,639
4,102,709,905
27,266,835,316
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5.11.4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the year ended 31.03.2077 (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

. Explanatory . Effe:c't of Amount as per
Particulars Note Previous GAAP | Transition to NFRSs
NFRSs
Interest Income 1 3,823,408,627 9,357,543 3,832,766,171
Interest Expense (2,068,458,346) - (2,068,458,346)
Net Interest Income 1,754,950,282 9,357,543 1,764,307,825
Fee and Commission Income 352,898,921 - 352,898,921
Fee and Commission Expense (280,605) - (280,605)
Net Fee and Commission Income 352,618,316 - 352,618,316
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 2,107,568,597 9,357,543 2,116,926,141
Net Trading Income - - -
Other Operating Income 641,250 - 641,250
Total Operating Income 2,108,209,847 9,357,543 2,117,567,391
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and (283.181,673) i (283,181,673)
Other Losses
Net Operating Income 1,825,028,174 9,357,543 1,834,385,718
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 2 (729,027,304) (1,097,742) (730,125,046)
Other Operating Expenses 3 (114,959,422) 2,454,374 (112,505,048)
Depreciation & Amortization (32,937,543) - (32,937,543)
Operating Profit 948,103,905 10,714,175 958,818,080
Non-Operating Income 30,100,017 - 30,100,017
Non-Operating Expense (211,921) - (211,921)
Profit Before Income Tax 977,992,001 10,714,175 988,706,176
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax (327,275,979) - (327,275,979)
Deferred Tax 4 11,423,821 (2,477,940) 8,945,881
Profit for the Period 662,139,843 8,236,235 670,376,078
Other comprehensive income 5 - (1,686,877) (1,686,877)
Total Comprehensive Income 662,139,843 6,549,358 668,689,201
5.11.5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31.03.2077 (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)
Effect of
Particulars EXI;?:::OW Previous GAAP  Transition to Am(;l;;;: per
NFRSs
Net cash flows from operating activities 1 4,156,000,479 88,753,126 4,244,753,605

Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning
of the period

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of
the period

203 aIfffcs YlAdGeT-2000/ 06T

1
1

(4,393,323,943)
(296,208,119)

(533,531,583)
3,971,620,860

3,438,089,277

4,193,741,019
(102,299,146)

4,180,195,000
(503,510,020)

3,676,684,980

(199,582,924)
(398,507,264)

3,646,663,417
3,468,110,840

7,114,774,257
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CHHIMEK LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2077/78

As per Unaudited As per Audited Variance
Particulars Financial Financial In Amount n% Reason for Variance
S S (NPR.)
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,021,607,026.51 8,021,622,541.65 15,515.14 0% | Corrected as per bank statement and balance confirmation
Statutory Balances & due from Nepal
Rostro Bk P 594,517,670.00 594,517,670.00 - 0%
Placement with Bank and Financial o
Institutions ~ ) ~ 0%
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - 0%
Other Trading Assets - - - 0%
Loans .and Advances to MFIs & Co- R : R 0%
operatives
Loans and Advances to Customers 2510987375688 | 2488863846629 | (22121529059 | -19% | cludes Siall Loans & Advances and AIR on loan to customer, Loan loss provision s deducted
Investment Securities 358,742,200.00 359,403,186.81 660,986.81 0% | Treasury bills include Accrued interest receivable (AIR) as per NFRS
Current Tax Assets - - 0%
Investment Property - - 0%
Property and Equipment 260,870,621.24 260,870,621.24 0.00 0% -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 3,698,644.58 3,698,644.58 (0.00) 0% -
Deferred Tax Assets 16,035.967.46 21,176,239.16 514027170 300 Adj;sgggnt of temporary differences on necessary items, i.e. employees defined benefit plan as
per
AIR on treasury bill & AIR on loan to customer is shown under Investment securities & Loan and
Other Assets 944,138,247.82 136.807.893.30 | (807.330.354.52) 86% Advances to L(ilystomer, Staff Loans & Advances is shown under Loan and Advances to customers
Total Assets 35,309,484,134.49 |  34,286,755,263.03 | (1,022,728,871.46)
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - 0%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - 0%
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - 0%
Deposits from Customers 22,439,376,264.79 22,439,376,264.79 - 0%
Borrowings 6,210,307,722.05 6,217,521,409.64 7,213,687.59 0% | Correction of principal & interest portion of loan installment paid
Current Tax Liabilities 546,355,071.44 44009,196.85 | (502,345874.59) | -92% ﬁ:ﬁgﬁg{)ﬁggﬁm ‘l:‘:;‘l‘l“fyZﬁfzgfiséx:nﬁfg‘;ﬁﬁ;;gted FS figure includes only
Provisions - - 0%
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - 0%
e Necessary adjustment of Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations, liabilities for lon,
Other Liabilities 1,161,906,773.65 S14736,948.26 | (647.169,825.39) 6% service lre);vejas per NFRS, exclude of intell")esty suspense & loan loss prgvision from other liabili%ies
Debt Securities Issued - - 0%
Subordinated Liabilities - - 0%
Total Liabilities 30,357,945,831.93 | 29,215,643,819.54 | (1,142,302,012.39) 4%
Equity
Share Capital 1,830,000,000.00 1,830,000,000.00 - 0% | -
Share Premium 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00 - 0% | -
. . Necessary adjustments in several income and expenses as per NFRS, Transfer to general reserve
Retained Eamings 1,352,080,644.56 122399785581 | (328,082.788.75) 2% & Rccrual?;or; Reserve, Deduction of Share issucpcxpcnscsf)Dividcnd allocation i
Necessary adjustment in statutory general reserve, Client protection fund, Corporate Social
Reserves 1,528,489,824.00 1,976,145,753.68 47,655,929.68 2%% Respangiiliti/ Reserve and Rec:)yv%ition of Regulatory reserve & acturial gairl;p(net of deffered tax)
Total Equity 4,951,538,302.56 | 5,071,111,443.49 | 119,573,140.93 2%
Total Liabilities and Equity 35,309,484,134.49 |  34,286,755,263.03 | (1,022,728,871.46) 3%
S of Profit or Loss
As per Unaudited As per Audited Variance
Particulars Financial Financial In Amount In% Reason for Variance
S S (NPR.)
Interest Income 4,055,954,532.03 4,227,806,576.03 171,852,044.00 | 4.24% | Includes Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) on loans and advance
Interest Expense 1,990,805,993.40 1,998,019,680.99 7,213,687.59 | 0.36% | Correction of principal & interest portion of loan installment paid
Net Interest Income 2,065,148,538.63 2,229,786,895.04 164,638,356.41
Fee and Commission Income 53001261700 | 53102797033 101535333 | 0.19% | Miscellaneous fcome reclassifed from other operationg income and correction of remitance
Fee and Commission Expense - 76,383.94 76,383.94 Reclassified from other Operating expenses
Net Fee and C Income 530,012,617.00 530,951,586.39 938,969.39 | 0.18%
Net Interest, Fee and C Income 2,595,161,155.63 2,760,738,481.43 165,577,325.80 |  6.38%
Net Trading Income - -
Other Operating Income 1,624,332.83 702,438.23 (921,894.60) | -56.76% | Reclassified to fee and commission income
Total Operating Income 2,596,785,488.46 2,761,440,919.66 164,655,431.20 | 6.34%
;’:é’%‘;l‘fr“{fszz‘;ge/ (Reversal) for Loans (©0,108852.04) | (60.290207.15) (181,355.11) | 0.30% | Includes Provision for other assets & write back from provision for other asscts
Net Operating Income 2,656,894,340.50 2,821,731,126.81 164,836,786.31 6.20%
Operating Expense
Necessary adjustment of acturial valuation of gratuity & leave encashment, Finance Expenses
Personnel Expenses 802,640,161.38 828,447,250.96 25,807,089.58 |  3.22% | under NFRS, change in bonus provision due to change in operating profit after necessary
adjustments
Other Operating Expenscs 156.333.720.86 12240737172 (33.926349.14) | -21.70% Depreciation on fixed assets shown under separate head, bank commission charge reclassified to
= T M fee and commission expense and share issue expense debited to retained earning
Depreciation & Amortisation 31,502,890.37 31,502,890.37 Reclassified from other operating expenses
Operating Profit 1,697,920,458.26 1,839,373,613.77 141,453,155.51 | 8.33%
Non Operating Income 64,067,486.72 64,158,802.22 91,315.50 0.14% | Recognition of unrecorded income
Non Operating Expense -
Profit Before Income Tax 1,761,987,944.98 1,903,532,415.99 141,544,471.01 | 8.03%
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax 546355.071.44 604.792.487.31 5843741587 | 10.70% Necessary adjustments in income and expenses as per NFRS & audited FS figure includes only
7 T — current year computed tax liability
Deferred Tax (15,115,846.93) (15,115,846.93) Adjustment of temporary differences on necessary items, i.e. employees defined benefit plan
Profit for the Year 1,215,632,873.54 1,313,855,775.60 98,222,902.06 |  8.08%
Profit Attributable to:
Equity-holders of the Financial Institution 1,215,632,873.54 1,313,855,775.60 98,222,902.06 |  8.08%
Non-controlling interest -
Profit for the Year 1,215,632,873.54 1,313,855,775.60 98,222,902.06 |  8.08%
T&
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CHHIMEK LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.

Central Office, Kathmandu, Nepal, Phone no. +977-1-4490513, 4464852

Last Five Year's Financial Highlights

Statutory Balances & due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments

Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-operatives
Loans and Advances to Customers

Investment Securities

Current Tax Assets

Investment Property

209,125,820.00

12,382,277,075.42
8,200,000.00

244,125,820.00

16,407,696,744.40
8,200,000.00

158,861,631.81

503,510,020.00

19,579,543,898.38
139,696,422.00

550,715,020.00

18,922,350,018.03
298,092,829.67

250,836,681.59

Amount in NPR
Particulars Financial Year
2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,591,333,096.31 2,580,417,708.97 3,468,110,840.23 7,114,774,257.41 8,021,622,541.65

594,517,670.00

24,888,658,466.29
359,403,186.81

260,870,621.24

Debt Securities Issued
Subordinated Liabilities

995,656,749.99

1,273,537,543.20

311,868,685.72

Property and Equipment 154,776,519.71 242.447,619.31
Goodwill and Intangible Assets - - 2,990,529.90 3,491,690.44 3,698,644.58
Deferred Tax Assets - - - 8,454,156.73 21,176,239.16
Other Assets 163,755,393.84 150,270,251.83 119,389,928.23 110,538,851.51 136,807,893.30
Total Assets 15,509,467,905.28 19,549,572,157.01 24,055,689,258.05 27,259,253,505.38 34,286,755,263.03
Particulars Financial Year

2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4,159,871.00 3,170,903.00 2,181,935.00 1,198,967.00 -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - -
Deposits from Customers 9,068,311,377.58 11,929,671,577.93 15,387,326,226.34 18,665,963,630.71 22,439,376,264.79
Borrowings 3,926,233,857.24 4,429,450,772.41 4,479,520,993.88 4,073,346,786.59 6,217,521,409.64
Current Tax Liabilities - 15,356,532.52 25,671,277.93 20,923,050.62 44,009,196.85
Provisions - - 17,064,376.66 17,064,376.66 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,214,670.99
Other Liabilities

378,046,788.66

514,736,948.26

13,994,361,855.81

17,651,187,329.06

20,224,848,166.52

23,156,543,600.24

29,215,643,819.54

Total Liabilities

Equity - - -
Share Capital 1,000,000,000.00 1,180,000,000.00 1,180,000,000.00 1,500,000,000.00 1,830,000,000.00
Share Premium 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00 40,967,834.00

Retained Earnings 97,342,919.42 167,710,535.78 954,528,133.09 891,789,432.57 1,223,997,855.81
Reserves 376,795,296.05 509,706,458.17 1,655,345,124.44 1,669,952,638.57 1,976,145,753.68
Total Equity 1,515,106,049.47 1,898,384,827.95 3,830,841,091.53 4,102,709,905.14 5,071,111,443.49
Total Liabilities and Equity 15,509,467,905.28 19,549,572,157.01 24,055,689,258.05 |  27,259,253,505.38 34,286,755,263.03
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments - - - - -
Net Assets Value per share 151.51 160.88 324.65 273.51 277.11
Particulars Financial Year
2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78
Interest Income 2,265,416,063.44 2,830,725,076.28 3,491,142,957.24 3,832,766,170.57 4,227,806,576.03
Interest Expense 1,018,996,291.64 1,339,387,430.45 1,773,136,555.44 2,068,458,345.71 1,998,019,680.99
Net Interest Income 1,246,419,771.80 1,491,337,645.83 1,718,006,401.80 1,764,307,824.86 2,229,786,895.04
Fee and Commission Income 177,211,467.56 232,883,938.99 444,330,450.71 352,898,920.73 531,027,970.33
Fee and Commission Expense - - - 280,604.99 76,383.94
Net Fee and Com Income 177,211,467.56 232,883,938.99 444,330,450.71 352,618,315.74 530,951,586.39
Net Interest, Fee and C Income 1,423,631,239.36 1,724,221,584.82 2,162,336,852.51 2,116,926,140.60 2,760,738,481.43
Net Trading Income - - - - -
Other Operating Income - - - 641,250.00 702,438.23
Total Operating Income 1,423,631,239 1,724,221,585 2,162,336,853 2,117,567,390.60 2,761,440,919.66
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 50,666,601.93 46,462,607.45 55,767,652.82 283,181,673.10 (60,290,207.15)
Net Operating Income 1,372,964,637.43 1,677,758,977.37 2,106,569,199.69 | 1,834,385,717.50 | 2,821,731,126.81

Operating Expense

Personnel Expenses 468,955,264.58 659,185,435.81 672,447,961.28 730,125,045.65 828,447,250.96
Other Operating Expenses 70,404,433.65 81,775,092.96 298,672,591.66 112,505,048.42 122,407,371.72
Depreciation & Amortisation 17,923,475.80 20,642,834.36 27,588,736.91 32,937,543.18 31,502,890.37
Operating Profit 815,681,463.40 916,155,614.24 1,107,859,909.84 958,818,080.25 1,839,373,613.77
Non Operating Income 23,606,897.09 45,114,396.58 50,906,737.11 30,100,016.68 64,158,802.22
Non Operating Expense - - - 211,921.00 -
Profit Before Income Tax 839,288,360.49 961,270,010.82 1,158,766,646.95 988,706,175.93 1,903,532,415.99
Income Tax Expense 263480380.4 294659012.4 412092711.2 - -
Current Tax 264,314,983.74 294,247,974.81 415,885,558.12 327,275,978.74 604,792,487.31
Deferred Tax (834,603.34) 411,037.57 (3,792,846.90) (8,945,880.52) (15,115,846.93)
Profit for the Year 575,807,980.09 666,610,998.44 746,673,935.73 670,376,077.71 1,313,855,775.60
Profit Attributable to: - -

Equity-holders of the Financial Institution 575,807,980.09 666,610,998.44 746,673,935.73 670,376,077.71 1,313,855,775.60

Non-controlling interest

575,807,980.09

666,610,998.44

746,673,935.73

670,376,077.71

1,313,855,775.60

Profit for the Year

Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share 57.58 56.49 63.28 44.69 71.80
Diluted Earnings per Share 57.58 56.49 63.28 44.69 71.80
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Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Central Office, Kathmandu, Nepal, Phone no. +977-1-4490513, 4464852
Principal Indicators

Particulars Indicators 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78
Institutional Coverage
District Number 62 63 67 67 67
Rural Municipality/Municipality Number 1,615 650 427 427 439
Branch Number 122 128 134 137 186
Outreach
Total Member and Depositor Number 313,557 347,849 364,254 372,841 396,430
Loanee Number 233,657 251,377 255,465 248,036 254,758
Unit Number 16,642 18,937 20,489 21,332 22,190
Group Number 68,553 70,624 89,194 96,945 97,204
Loan Portfolio
Total Disbursement till Date Rs. 67,797,963,285 91,118,834,087 | 116,780,877,729 | 133,033,179,090 | 168,211,334,229
Outstanding Portfolio Rs. 12,514,202,016 16,586,259,779 19,755,447,270 19,374,057,621 25,183,194,684
Saving & Deposit
Total Saving and Deposit collection till Date Rs. 21,914,361,326 83,867,651,846 | 156,079,363,274 | 216,165,419,369 | 310,655,368,046
Existing Savings and Deposits Rs. 9,068,311,378 11,929,671,578 15,387,326,226 18,665,963,631 22,439,376,265
Total Employees Number Number 657 652 1,138 1,116 1,116
Portfolio Quality
Overdue Loan % 0.05 0.09 0.18 15.61 0.56
Portfolio at Risk % 0.09 0.11 0.34 76.63 241
Non Performing Loans/Total Loans % 0.09 0.11 0.28 0.45 0.63
Efficiency & Productivity
Units per Field Staff Ratio 49 61 41 34 36
Members per Field Staff Ratio 930 1,118 736 592 628
Loanee per Field Staff Ratio 693 808 516 394 418
Loan Per Field Staff Ratio 37,134,131 53,332,025 39,909,994 30,752,472 41,231,320
Loan Size per Loanee Ratio 53,558 65,982 77,331 78,110 98,851
Total Credit/ Total Savings and Deposits Ratio 1.38 1.39 1.28 1.04 1.12
Profitability Ratio
Net Profit/Gross Income % 23.35% 21.44% 18.73% 15.90% 27.24%
Interest Income/Loans & Advances % 18.30% 17.25% 17.83% 20.26% 16.99%
Employee Expenses/Total Operating Exps % 29.75% 31.37% 24.26% 24.80% 27.80%
Interest Expenses on Total Deposit and Borrowings % 7.84% 8.19% 8.93% 9.10% 6.97%
Staff Bonus/ Total Employee Expenses % 17.90% 14.58% 19.15% 14.88% 25.53%
Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 4.65% 4.06% 3.81% 3.54% 5.28%
Net Profit/ Total Assets % 3.71% 3.41% 3.10% 2.46% 3.83%
Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets % 10.49% 10.98% 11.75% 11.84% 8.52%
Statutory Ratios
a. Core Capital % 11.23% 12.43% 13.31% 13.50% 14.89%
b. Supplementary Capital % 1.42% 0.99% 1.04% 1.34% 1.27%
c. Total Capital Fund % 12.65% 13.42% 14.35% 14.84% 16.16%
Liquidity % 30.88% 23.68% 25.81% 41.07% 38.40%
Cash Reserve Ratio(CRR) % 2.31% 2.05% 2.11% 2.98% 2.53%
Statutory Liquidity Ratio(SLR) % 2.31% 2.05% 4.46% 4.56% 4.42%
Investors' Concern Ratio
Earnings Per Share Rs. 57.58 56.49 63.28 44.69 71.80
Market Value per Share Rs. 1525.00 749.00 950.00 1090.00 1738.00
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 26.48 13.26 15.01 24.39 24.21
Dividend (bonus) on share capital % 19.89% 18.00% 27.11% 22.00% 27.00%
Cash Dividend on share Capital % 25.11% 22.00% 17.21% 7.00% 3.00%
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 10.8 9.73 7.95 7.42 7.15
Book Net worth Rs. 1,515,106,049 1,898,384,828 3,830,841,092 4,102,709,905 5,071,111,443
Return on Equity % 38.00% 35.11% 19.49% 16.34% 25.91%
Total Shares Number Number 10,000,000 11,800,000 11,800,000* 15,000,000 18,300,000
Book Net Worth Per Share Ratio Ratio 151.51 160.88 324.65 273.51 277.11
Reserve & Surplus Rs. 515,106,049 718,384,828 2,650,841,092 2,602,709,905 3,241,111,443

T

*A4s per NFRS, proposed bonus share has been added in subsequent year after approval from Annual General Meeting.
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